
Board of Directors Meeting
October 25, 2021 09:00 AM

Agenda Topic Presenter

Agenda

I. Pledge of Allegiance/Moment of Silence Daniel Bean

II. Approval of Minutes - Board of Directors Meeting - September 27, 2021 Chair Wendy 
Hamilton

III. Public Comments

IV. Presentations

Recognition of Board Member Dr. John Newman Chair Wendy 
Hamilton

V. New Business

BD2021-10-01 - ARPA Grant from City of Jacksonville Beth McCague

BD2021-10-02 - Sovereign Submerged Land Lease Renewal Fred Wong

VI. CEO Update Eric Green

VII. Reports

R2021-10-01  Engineering and Construction Update James Bennett

R2021-10-02  Financial Highlights by Beth McCague Info Only

R2021-10-03  Financials/Vital Statistics Mike McClung

R2021-10-04  Commercial Highlights Robert Peek

VIII. Other Business Chair Wendy 
Hamilton

Approval of Travel - Chair Wendy Hamilton recommends approval of travel by one or more  
Board Members of the  Authority for business solicitation purposes or to attend any necessary  
conferences during the months of December 2021/January 2022.

IX. Miscellaneous

A.  Emergency Purchases - None

B.  Unbudgeted Transactions - None

Board of Directors Meeting - Agenda

1



X. Adjourn Chair Wendy 
Hamilton

The next Board of Directors Meeting will be held on 
Monday, December 6, 2021 @9:00AM.  There will  
also be an Audit Committee Meeting on December 6, 2021 @8:00AM.

Board of Directors Meeting - Agenda

2



Minutes for Board of Directors Meeting | 1

Minutes for Board of Directors Meeting

09/27/2021 | 09:15 AM - 10:15 AM - Eastern Time (US and Canada)

2831 Talleyrand Avenue, Jacksonville, FL 32206

Board Members Attending:

Ms. Wendy Hamilton, Vice Chair
Mr. Palmer Clarkson, Treasurer 
Mr. Daniel Bean, Secretary (via GoTo)
Dr. John Allen Newman, Member
Mr. Ed Fleming, Member
Mr. Brad Talbert, Member

Absent: Mr. Jamie Shelton, Chairman

Other Attendees:

Mr. Eric Green, Chief Executive Officer
Mr. Fred Wong, Chief Operating Officer
Ms. Beth McCague, Chief Financial Officer
Ms. Linda Williams, Chief, Adm. & Corporate Performance
Mr. Nick Primrose, Chief, Regulatory Compliance
Mr. James Bennett, Sr. Director, Engineering & Construction
Mr. Robert Peek, Director & GM, Business Development 
Mr. Mike McClung, Director of Finance
Mr. David Migut, Office of General Counsel
Ms. Rebecca Dicks, Board Liaison 

Agenda

A meeting of the Jacksonville Port Authority Board of Directors was held on Monday,

September 27, 2021 at the Port Central Office Building, 2831 Talleyrand Avenue, Jacksonville, Florida. 

Vice Chair Wendy Hamilton called the meeting to order at 9:15 a.m. and welcomed all attendees. Vice 

Chair Hamilton informed the Board that Chairman Jamie Shelton had a scheduling conflict, so she would 

be conducting this meeting. She also stated that Board Member Daniel Bean would be joining this 

meeting virtually due to his travel schedule.

Pledge of Allegiance/Moment of Silence

Board Member Palmer Clarkson led the audience in the Pledge of Allegiance and a moment of silence.

Board of Directors Meeting - Approval of Minutes - Board of Directors Meeting - September 27, 2021

1



Minutes for Board of Directors Meeting | 2

Approval of Minutes

Vice Chair Hamilton called for approval of the July 26, 2021 Board of Directors Meeting Minutes. After a 

motion by Mr. Fleming and a second by Mr. Clarkson, the Board unanimously approved the minutes as 

submitted.

Public Comments

Vice Chair Hamilton called for comments from the public. There being none, she moved on to 

Presentations.

Presentations

Mr. Fred Wong recognized James Baity, Maintenance Tech III, BIMT, for reaching his 25-year milestone 

and thanked him for his service.

Milestone:  Mr. Fred Wong recognized James Baity, Maintenance Tech III, BIMT, for reaching his 25-

year milestone and thanked him for his service.

Chairman's Update

Audit Committee Update

As Chair of the Audit Committee, Ms. Hamilton briefed the full Board with a recap as to their 

recommendations. She stated that the Audit Committee completed the CEO’s annual performance 

review and evaluation for FY20/21. She stated that on behalf of the Audit Committee, they believe the 

CEO, Eric Green, did a commendable job during another unprecedented difficult year. The Audit 

Committee reviewed the CEO’s smart goals and results established last year. Based on the weights 

and factors that the committee took into consideration, they determined that the CEO reached his 

performance factor by 100% and approved a 25% bonus to the CEO in the amount of $98,145.

Vice Chair Hamilton asked the other Audit Committee members if they had any comments. Mr. Bean 

stated that what has been accomplished under the CEO’s leadership during the past year speaks 

volumes about his abilities, and he is impressed by the amount of work he has done and the work his 

staff has performed under his leadership. Mr. Clarkson agreed and stated that the CEO and his team 

have done a tremendous job during extraordinary conditions.

Ms. Hamilton then called for a vote on the Audit Committee’s recommendation to approve the CEO’s 

bonus in the amount of $98,145. After a motion by Dr. Newman and a second by Mr. Fleming, the 

Board unanimously voted to approve the CEO’s bonus in the amount of $98,145.

Board of Directors Meeting - Approval of Minutes - Board of Directors Meeting - September 27, 2021

2



Minutes for Board of Directors Meeting | 3

Proposed Slate of Board Officers

Vice Chair Hamilton stated that she opened discussion earlier this morning during the Audit Committee 

meeting regarding a proposed slate of Board Officers to serve a term beginning October 1, 2021 through 

September 30, 2022. She stated that the Audit Committee recommended that the current slate of Board 

Officers immediately move up which would make Wendy Hamilton, Chair, Palmer Clarkson, Vice Chair, 

Daniel Bean, Treasurer, and Brad Talbert, Secretary for a term beginning October 1, 2021 through 

September 30, 2022.

After a motion by Mr. Clarkson, and a second by Mr. Talbert, the Board unanimously approved this slate 

of officers to serve a term beginning on October 1, 2021 through September 30, 2022.

Vice Chair Hamilton stated that she also asked the Audit Committee for a recommendation as to the 

Audit Committee members for a term beginning October 1, 2021 through September 30, 2022. The 

committee recommended Palmer Clarkson as Chair of the Audit Committee, along with members Daniel 

Bean, Brad Talbert and Ed Fleming. 

After a motion by Mr. Talbert, and a second by Mr. Clarkson, the Board unanimously approved this slate 

of officers to serve on the Audit Committee for a term beginning on October 1, 2021 through September 

30, 2022.

New Business

BD2021-09-01 Florida Department of Transportation Coronavirus
State Fiscal Recovery Funds Subrecipient Grant Agreement

Mr. Beth McCague presented this submission for Board approval of the FDOT Coronavirus State Fiscal 

Recovery Funds Subrecipient Grant Agreement which will allow JAXPORT to receive funding to help 

with the negative economic impacts of the COVID-19 public health emergency.

After a motion by Mr. Talbert and a second by Mr. Clarkson, the Board voted to approve this submission.

BD2021-09-02 Department of Navy Property Transfers at
Blount Island Command

Mr. Fred Wong presented this submission for Board approval of the transfer of 5 JAXPORT Blount 

Island properties totaling approximately 9.88 acres to the Department of Navy as these properties are 

needed to provide shoreline protection for Blount Island Command.

Board of Directors Meeting - Approval of Minutes - Board of Directors Meeting - September 27, 2021

3



Minutes for Board of Directors Meeting | 4

After a motion by Mr. Fleming and a second by Mr. Talbert, the Board voted to approve this submission.

AC2021-09-01 SSA JCT – Container Yard Improvements
Superior Construction Company Southeast, LLC

Mr. James Bennett presented this submission seeking Board approval of awarding a contract to 

Superior Construction Company Southeast, LLC for SSA JCT – Container Yard Improvements Phases 1 

– 7 in the amount of $48,876,120 plus a contingency of $2,443,806 (5%).

After a motion by Dr. Newman and a second by Mr. Fleming, the Board voted to approve this 

submission. Board Member Palmer Clarkson recused himself from voting on this submission since his 

company Bridgestone Hose Power has a business relationship with Superior Construction Company.

CEO Update

Mr. Green began his update by thanking the Board for their positive review of his performance 

evaluation. He was very humbled by the Board’s kind remarks and also thanked his team for helping 

him achieve his goals.

Mr. Green recognized JAXPORT Asset Manager Brandon Blanton on receiving the U.S. Department of 

Defense’s Patriot Award. This recognition is for civilian employers who foster a military friendly work 

environment. JAXPORT crane technician Matthew Reed, who serves as a Seaman in the Navy 

Reserves, nominated Blanton for the award due to the support he received from Blanton while he was 

completing his military training. Mr. Green thanked Seaman Reed for his service to both the country and 

the port. He also thanked Brandon Blanton for representing JAXPORT to the highest level of 

professionalism.

Mr. Green informed the Board that in addition to their approval of the FDOT Grant which provides 

COVID-19 relief funds to JAXPORT, the City of Jacksonville has approved legislation allocating $4 

million of City COVID Relief Funds to JAXPORT. The grant agreement supporting this distribution will 

be presented to the Board at a future date.

Mr. Green announced new leaders to JAXPORT’s Public Safety and Procurement departments. Retired 

Jacksonville Sheriff’s Office veteran Derrick Lewis is the new Director of Public Safety, and experienced 

maritime purchasing expert Lisa Gee has been named the new Director of Procurement Services.

Board of Directors Meeting - Approval of Minutes - Board of Directors Meeting - September 27, 2021

4



Minutes for Board of Directors Meeting | 5

Mr. Green stated that special guests from SSA were in attendance today to celebrate an exciting 

milestone in the evolution of JAXPORT. The new SSA Jacksonville Container Terminal will be a 

modern, efficient deep-water terminal that further positions JAXPORT as a premier gateway port in the 

southeast United States. This terminal is made possible due to the long-standing support of the Board, 

as well as JAXPORT’s partnerships with the State of Florida, the federal government and private 

partners SSA. The terminal improvements being made by SSA, with support from the federal 

government, will improve the already efficient operations and enable the facility to accommodate more 

containers.

Mr. Green then welcomed Ari Steinberg, SSA Marine’s Vice President of Project Engineering & 

Implementation who stated the terminal expansion will help SSA improve its container, breakbulk, and 

military cargo operations. He stated this project calls for expanding SSA’s terminal from 50 acres to 

approximately 90 acres through paving, fencing, gate enhancements and lighting improvements. It will 

be developed in eight phases. Superior’s bid encapsulated the first seven phases. The eighth phase is 

expected to go out to bid later this year. Mr. Steinberg stated that SSA had been looking for 

opportunities to build a facility and with JAXPORT’s help, it has enabled them to enter into this exciting 

public-private partnership.

Reports

R2021-09-01  Engineering and Construction Update

Mr. James Bennett provided an overview of the key capital and engineering projects.

R2021-09-02  Financial Highlights by Beth McCague

Ms. Beth McCague provided Financial Highlights to the Board in their books for the month of August 

2021.

R2021-09-03 Financials/Vital Statistics

Mr. Mike McClung provided an overview of the financials and vital statistics.

R2021-09-04  Commercial Highlights

Mr. Robert Peek provided updated commercial highlights to the Board for the month of September 2021.

Board of Directors Meeting - Approval of Minutes - Board of Directors Meeting - September 27, 2021

5



Minutes for Board of Directors Meeting | 6

Other Business

After a motion by Mr. Talbert and a second by Dr. Newman, the Board unanimously approved travel by 

one or more Board Members of the Authority for business solicitation purposes or to attend any 

necessary conferences and/or meetings during the months of October/November 2021.

Miscellaneous

There were no emergency purchases or unbudgeted transactions.

Adjourn

There being no further business of the Board, the meeting adjourned at 10:15 a.m.

Board of Directors Meeting - Approval of Minutes - Board of Directors Meeting - September 27, 2021

6



 BD2021-10-01       

    SUBMISSION 
FOR 

BOARD APPROVAL  
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  
  
  

BACKGROUND:  The U.S. Department of the Treasury announced the launch of the 
Coronavirus State and Local Fiscal Recovery  Funds, established by the American 
Rescue Plan Act of 2021 (ARPA).  Pursuant to City Ordinance 2021-463-E, this Grant 
Agreement is established to respond to the negative economic impacts of the COVID-
19 public health emergency, to offset eligible expenses and to assist JAXPORT in 
recovering from the negative economic impacts of the COVID-19 pandemic. 
 
STATUS:  The City of Jacksonville has awarded JAXPORT $4,000,000 to assist in 
recovery from the pandemic. JAXPORT may utilize these Grant Funds for eligible 
expenses in accordance with the Appropriation Ordinance and the ARP Act from the 
period of March 1, 2020, through September 30,2022. Any funds remaining, 
unspent/unexpended as of September 30, 2022, shall be immediately returned to the 
City.  

 
Eligible expenses include operating expenses. JAXPORT will submit documentation 
for the following expenses to support the Grant funding: Salaries and Benefits. 
 
RECOMMENDATION:  Management recommends Board approval of the Grant 
Agreement and the attached Resolution. 
 
ATTACHMENTS:   
 
• Board Resolution 
• American Rescue Plan Act Grant Agreement 

 

    

SUBJECT: CITY OF JACKSONVILLE AMERICAN RESCUE PLAN ACT GRANT 
 
AMOUNT:    $4,000,000    BUDGETED:  N/A  
   
SOURCE OF FUNDS:  City of Jacksonville 

Board of Directors Meeting - BD2021-10-01 - ARPA Grant from City of Jacksonville

1



 BD2021-10-01       

    SUBMISSION 
FOR 

BOARD APPROVAL  
 

 
 
 

RECOMMENDED FOR APPROVAL: 
 
Beth McCague    ___________________________________ 
Chief Financial Officer    Signature and Date 
 
  

  
SUBMITTED FOR APPROVAL: 
 
Eric Green     ___________________________________ 
Chief Executive Officer   Signature and Date 

 
BOARD APPROVAL: 
 
 
    10/25/2021    ___ ___    ___________________________________ 
Meeting Date     Rebecca Dicks/Recording Secretary 
 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 

__________________________  ___________________________________ 
Bradley S. Talbert, Secretary  Wendy O. Hamilton, Chair 
 
 

Signature:

Email:

Signature:

Email:

Beth McCague (Oct 20, 2021 15:15 EDT)
Beth McCague
Beth.McCague@jaxport.com

Eric B. Green (Oct 21, 2021 12:33 EDT)
Eric B. Green

eric.green@jaxport.com

Board of Directors Meeting - BD2021-10-01 - ARPA Grant from City of Jacksonville

2

https://jacksonvilleportauthority.na3.echosign.com/verifier?tx=CBJCHBCAABAAJCihwFyunawlAyYpG3gDkYT_ElXqt88e
https://jacksonvilleportauthority.na3.echosign.com/verifier?tx=CBJCHBCAABAAJCihwFyunawlAyYpG3gDkYT_ElXqt88e


A RESOLUTION OF THE JACKSONVILLE PORT AUTHORITY AUTHORIZING 
THE EXECUTION OF AN AMERICAN RESCUE PLAN ACT GRANT 
AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE CITY OF JACKSONVILLE AND THE 
JACKSONVILLE PORT AUTHORITY PURSUANT TO CITY ORDINANCE 2021-
463-E.

WHEREAS, the Jacksonville Port Authority (JAXPORT) has been presented an opportunity by the 
CITY OF JACKSONVILLE (CITY) to receive funding through the American Rescue Plan Act of 2021 
(ARPA) to respond to the negative economic impacts of the COVID-19 public health emergency,
to offset eligible expenses and to assist JAXPORT in recovering from the negative economic 
impacts of the COVID-19 pandemic.

WHEREAS, according to terms and conditions of the proposed American Rescue Plan Act Grant 
Agreement, JAXPORT will agree that the CITY will reimburse 100% of all eligible expenditures 
beginning March 3, 2021 (Exhibit A) up to the amount of $4,000,000.

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED BY THE JACKSONVILLE PORT AUTHORITY:

Section 1. JAXPORT confirms its desire to enter in the; American Rescue Plan Act Grant 
Agreement with the CITY;

Section 2. The Chairman of the Board or her authorized representative is herein authorized to 
execute this Resolution on behalf of JAXPORT.

Section 3. The Chief Executive Officer of JAXPORT is herein authorized to enter into and sign 
such documents as may be necessary, including the American Rescue Plan Act Grant Agreement, 
and any Supplemental American Rescue Plan Grant Agreements for the purpose of scope 
changes, funding adjustments, contract duration changes, additional financial project numbers 
as well as execute Assurances, Certifications and other documents as may be required to support 
the project.

Section 4.  This resolution shall take effect immediately upon its adoption.

APPROVED AND ADOPTED THIS 25th day of October, 2021.

(Official Seal)

ATTEST: JACKSONVILLE PORT AUTHORITY

_________________________________ ____________________________________
Bradley S. Talbert, Secretary Wendy O. Hamilton, Chairman

Board of Directors Meeting - BD2021-10-01 - ARPA Grant from City of Jacksonville

3



 

 

AMERICAN RESCUE PLAN ACT  

GRANT AGREEMENT 

 THIS AMERICAN RESCUE PLAN ACT GRANT AGREEMENT (the 

“Agreement”) is made and entered into on this    day of    , 2021 

(the “Effective Date”), by and between the CITY OF JACKSONVILLE, a consolidated 

political subdivision and municipal corporation existing under the laws of the State of Florida 

(the “City”) and JACKSONVILE PORT AUTHORITY, a body politic and corporate and 

independent agency of the City of Jacksonville (“Recipient”). 

 

RECITALS: 

 

 WHEREAS, on March 11, 2021, the federal American Rescue Plan Act (the “ARP 

Act”) was signed into law and provided for the distribution of Coronavirus relief, fiscal recovery, 

and critical capital projects funds to state, territorial, tribal and local governments of the United 

States; and 

 

 WHEREAS, the ARP Act provides that these funds may be used by recipient 

governments and tribal agencies for various projects and purposes that include efforts to respond 

to the COVID-19 public health emergency and its negative economic impacts, including 

providing aid and assistance to households, small businesses, and non-profits suffering economic 

losses and harm due to the COVID-19 pandemic; and 

 

 WHEREAS, the City is the recipient of approximately $171,897,895.00 in ARP Act 

grant funds to be used to offset lost revenues and other eligible expenses in accordance with the 

ARP Act; and 

 

 WHEREAS, pursuant to City Ordinance 2021-463-E (the “Appropriation 

Ordinance”), the City appropriated $30,000,000.00 in ARP Act local fiscal recovery grant 

funds, a portion of which was set aside to provide economic relief and assistance to various small 

businesses and non-profits in Duval County, Florida, in accordance with the ARP Act; and 

 

 WHEREAS, the City desires to provide Recipient, an independent agency of the City of 

Jacksonville, with a portion of the ARP Act funds to offset eligible expenses and to assist 

Recipient in recovering from the negative economic impacts of the COVID-19 pandemic; and 

 

 WHEREAS, pursuant to the Appropriation Ordinance, the City has determined the 

economic aid and assistance to Recipient as set forth herein is necessary to assist Recipient in 

recovering from the negative economic impacts of the COVID-19 pandemic and to maintain the 

viability of Recipient and therefore the City has appropriated and hereby provides an American 

Rescue Plan Act Grant to Recipient in the amount of $4,000,000.00 (the “Grant Funds”) 

pursuant to the terms and conditions set forth herein. 

 

 NOW, THEREFORE, for good and valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency 

of which is hereby acknowledged, the parties agree as follows: 

 

 

Board of Directors Meeting - BD2021-10-01 - ARPA Grant from City of Jacksonville

4



 

2 

I. INCORPORATION OF RECITALS   
 

 The above stated recitals are accurate and by this reference made a part this Agreement. 

 

II. GENERAL CONDITIONS  
 

A. Recipient agrees to do as follows: 

 

1. To accept the Grant Funds as appropriated in accordance with the terms of this 

Agreement, the ARP Act, and the Appropriation Ordinance. 

2. To abide by Chapter 119, Florida Statutes, as amended from time to time, a copy of 

which can be obtained by Recipient online at http://www.leg.state.fl.us/Statutes/, which by this 

reference is made a part of this Agreement.  All documents not expressly exempt from the Public 

Records Act relative to this Agreement and the Grant Funds are considered to be public records 

as defined in said Chapter 119, Florida Statutes; and 

3. To obtain permits, as may be required, from the State of Florida and the City of 

Jacksonville and abide by all applicable state laws and local ordinances, as from time to time 

amended; and 

4. To return to the City within fifteen (15) days of written demand all Grant Funds paid 

to Recipient under the terms of this Agreement upon the City finding that Recipient has violated 

the terms of this Agreement, the provisions of the ARP Act, or the provisions of the 

Appropriation Ordinance; including, but not limited to, making expenditures that are specifically 

disallowed by this Agreement or the ARP Act.  Recipient may utilize the Grant Funds for 

eligible expenses in accordance with the Appropriation Ordinance and the ARP Act from the 

period of March 1, 2020 through September 30, 2022.  Recipient understands and agrees that it 

shall not use any Grant Funds provided pursuant to this Agreement to offset any costs or 

expenses for which Recipient has already received federal, state or local funding.  Any Grant 

Funds remaining unspent/unexpended as of September 30, 2022 shall be immediately returned to 

the City. 

5. As a condition precedent to the City’s execution of this Agreement and/or 

disbursement of any Grant Funds to Recipient, Recipient shall complete the ARP Act Grant 

Application, attached hereto as Exhibit A and incorporated herein by this reference (the “Grant 

Application”), and submit it to the City contemporaneously with the executed Agreement.  

Upon the City’s request, Recipient shall also provide the City with a report regarding the Grant 

Funds.  Such report shall be on a City approved form and contain information as reasonably 

requested by the City.  

6. Recipient shall not utilize Grant Funds for any of the following categories:  

i)  contributions to a contingency reserve or a similar provision for unforeseen events.  

ii) costs of amusements, social activities and incidental costs relating thereto, such as 

meals, beverages, lodgings, rentals, transportation and gratuities.  

Board of Directors Meeting - BD2021-10-01 - ARPA Grant from City of Jacksonville

5

http://www.leg.state.fl.us/Statutes/


 

3 

iii) costs resulting from violations of or failure to comply with federal, state and local 

laws and regulations.  

iv)  the salaries and costs of the office of the governor of a state or the chief executive 

of a political subdivision. These costs are considered a cost of general state or local government.  

v)  the salaries and other costs of the Legislature or similar local governmental bodies 

such as County commissioners, City councils and school boards, whether incurred for purposes 

of legislation or executive direction.  

vi)  Non-cash Expenses as defined in Section 118.104, Ordinance Code. 

vii) Costs of any audits required under this Agreement.  

7. Recipient consents to: 

i) Such audits of Recipient’s financial affairs by the City, including the City’s 

Finance and Administration Department (the “Department”), the City Council Auditor’s Office, 

the Office of Inspector General, the State of Florida or the United States government may require 

as they relate to the Grant Funds; and 

ii) Producing all documents required by the City, the Department, the City Council 

Auditor’s Office, the City’s Ethic’s Office, the Office of Inspector General, the State of Florida 

or the United States government.  Recipient agrees to give the City complete and unfettered 

access to all records regarding Grant Funds provided under this Agreement, at all times, during 

regular business hours, to ensure the Grant Funds are properly spent; and 

iii) Should the City determine it necessary, Recipient shall furnish to the City a final 

report of all expenditures of the Grant Funds in such form as the Department shall prescribe 

within ten (10) business days of the City’s request.  This report shall be certified as to its 

accuracy by the Financial Officer/Treasurer of Recipient’s organization.  This report shall 

include the time period from initial expenditure of the Grant Funds until all of the Grant Funds 

have been expended by Recipient.  The reporting obligation set forth in this paragraph shall 

survive the expiration or earlier termination of this Agreement. 

8. Recipient’s violation of any of the provisions contained in this Agreement, including 

the failure to adhere to the reporting requirements of this Agreement, failure to submit a 

complete and accurate Grant Application or any other information required by the City,  or 

failure to adhere to the requirements of any applicable code or statutory provision, whether or not 

incorporated into this Agreement, shall be a material breach of this Agreement and may result in 

immediate termination of this Agreement and Recipient’s return of all Grant Funds granted by 

this Agreement. 

9. All reports, audits, and other information Recipient provides pursuant to this 

Agreement, including but not limited to, the Grant Application, shall contain the following 

statement: “The information provided to the City of Jacksonville in this submittal is submitted 

under penalties of perjury, under Section 837.06, Florida Statutes”. 

Board of Directors Meeting - BD2021-10-01 - ARPA Grant from City of Jacksonville

6

https://library.municode.com/fl/jacksonville/codes/code_of_ordinances?nodeId=TITVADPE_CH118CIGR_PT1GEPR_S118.104DE


 

4 

 

 

III. EFFECTIVE DATE/TERM OF AGREEMENT  

 This Agreement is effective as of the Effective Date and shall continue in effect as to all 

its provisions, terms, and conditions until the earlier of the expenditure by Recipient of all Grant 

Funds received, or September 30, 2022.  Any Grant Funds not expended by September 30, 2022 

shall be returned to the City on or before October 5, 2022.  

IV. PAYMENT 

 The City agrees to pay Recipient Grant Funds in an amount not to exceed four million and 

00/100 Dollars ($4,000,000.00) within forty-five (45) days of the City’s receipt of a complete 

and accurate Grant Application and any additional information the City may reasonably require 

from Recipient prior to payment of the Grant Funds.  This amount constitutes the maximum 

indebtedness of the City pursuant to this Agreement, and the only obligation of the City 

hereunder.  The CFDA number of the grant authorized by this Agreement is 21.027.  The federal 

award ID number is SLFRP3403 / SLFRP0197.  The Federal awarding agency for the grant 

authorized hereunder is the U.S. Department of the Treasury. 

V. RECORDS 

A. By the acceptance of the Grant Funds, Recipient agrees to adhere to all provisions of the 

Florida Public Records Law (Chapter 119, Florida Statutes), with respect to the receipt, 

expenditure, and use of public funds from the City.  Therefore, except to the extent prohibited by 

the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996 (HIPAA), a copy of which can 

be obtained by Recipient online at http://www.cms.gov/HIPAAGenInfo/, which regulations are 

incorporated herein by reference, as applicable, all the financial, business, and membership 

records of the person, corporation, foundation, trust, association, group, or organization, relative 

to the grant shall be public records and subject to the provisions of the Public Records Law.  

Recipient’s failure to comply with this requirement will constitute a breach of this Agreement 

and may result in cancellation of this Agreement and the requirement that Recipient refund to the 

City all Grant Funds provided hereunder.  

B.  Recipient shall maintain financial and accounting records and conduct transactions in 

accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, Florida Statutes, and the requirements 

of the City’s Ordinance Code. These financial records shall be maintained in a manner 

permitting positive and ready identification of any Grant Funds received by Recipient from the 

City from the time such funds are actually received by Recipient until the time they are actually 

expended or disbursed by Recipient according to the terms of this Agreement.   

C.  In addition to other requirements specified in this Agreement, Office of Management and 

Budget (OMB) Circulars, including A-102, A-87, A-110, A-122, A-133 and A-21 and Title 2 

U.S. Code of Federal Regulations (CFR) Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost 

Principles and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance), may be used as a 

guide concerning records to be maintained. The aforesaid records shall be made available for 

Board of Directors Meeting - BD2021-10-01 - ARPA Grant from City of Jacksonville

7



 

5 

audit, copying or inspection purposes at any time during normal business hours and as often as 

the City or the City of Jacksonville Council Auditor may deem necessary.  

D. Recipient shall retain for such inspection all of its records and supporting documentation 

applicable to this Agreement for five (5) years after disbursement of the Grant Funds to 

Recipient. 

VI. AUDIT  

A. Upon the City’s request, Recipient shall obtain and provide to the City a copy of the 

latest available audited financial statements of Recipient or, if Recipient expends more than 

$750,000 of Federal grant dollars (inclusive of any Federal funds disbursed to Recipient apart 

from those authorized by this Agreement) during its fiscal year, Recipient shall obtain and 

provide to the City an original independent single audit conducted in accordance with both 

GAAS and Government Auditing Standards (“GAS”) issued by the Comptroller General of the 

United States; and Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations (CFR) Part 200, Uniform 

Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards 

(Uniform Guidance), of its financial affairs for its fiscal year ending within the current City fiscal 

year.  Such report shall be made by an independent certified public accountant.  If requested, 

such report shall be due within 120 days of the close of Recipient’s fiscal year. This paragraph 

shall survive the expiration or earlier termination of this Agreement for a period of five (5) years 

from the date of expiration or termination. 

 

B. The following audit requirements are in addition and supplemental to other audit 

requirements in this Agreement:  

 

1.  Recipient shall establish and maintain books, records, contracts, subcontracts, papers, 

financial records, supporting documents, statistical records, goods, services, and all other 

documents (the “Records”) in a format sufficient to reflect all receipts and expenditures of the 

Grant Funds. 

 

2.  Recipient shall retain all Records pertinent to this Agreement for a period of five (5) 

years after Recipient’s submission of a final financial expenditure report as described in Section 

6.iii. above.  If an audit has been initiated and audit findings have not been resolved at the end of 

five (5) years, the Records shall be retained, at no cost to the City, until resolution of the audit 

findings or any litigation based on the terms of this Agreement.  Records shall be retained for 

longer periods when any retention period required by law exceeds the time frames required in 

this paragraph. 

 

3.  Upon demand, at no additional cost to the City, Recipient shall facilitate the 

duplication and transfer of any Records during the applicable retention period. 

 

4.  Recipient shall provide the Records at all reasonable times for inspection, review, 

copying, or audit by the City, the City Council Auditor’s Office, the Office of Inspector General, 

the State of Florida, the United States government/federal agencies, or their authorized third-

party auditors or designees. 

 

Board of Directors Meeting - BD2021-10-01 - ARPA Grant from City of Jacksonville

8



 

6 

5.  At all reasonable times for as long as Recipient maintains the Records, Recipient shall 

allow persons authorized by the City to have full access to and the right to examine any of the 

Records, regardless of the form in which kept. 

 

6.  Recipient, at its cost, shall provide audits or reports as necessary for compliance by 

the Recipient and the City with the ARP Act, and otherwise as requested by the City, the City 

Council Auditor’s Office, the Office of Inspector General, the State of Florida, the United States 

government/federal agencies, or their authorized third-party auditors or designees, and shall 

insure that all related party transactions are disclosed to the auditor. 

 

7.  Recipient shall comply and cooperate immediately with any inspections, reviews, or 

investigations deemed necessary by the City. 

 

8. Recipient shall permit the City to interview any of Recipient’s employees, 

subcontractors, and subcontractors’ employees to assure the City of the satisfactory performance 

of this Agreement.  Following such review, if Recipient’s performance is, in the opinion of the 

City, deficient, the City will deliver to Recipient a written report of the deficiencies and request 

for Recipient’s development of a corrective action plan. Recipient agrees to prepare and submit 

to the City a corrective plan within five (5) business days of receiving the City’s written report.  

Recipient shall correct all deficiencies identified in the corrective action plan within five (5) 

business days from the City’s receipt of the corrective action plan. 

 

9.  All reports, audits, and other information Recipient provides pursuant to the 

Appropriation Ordinance, the ARP Act, or this Agreement shall contain the following statement: 

“The information provided to the City of Jacksonville in this submittal is submitted under 

penalties of perjury, under Section 837.06, Florida Statutes”. 

 

10.  If Recipient uses any contractors or subcontractors in utilization of the Grant Funds, 

Recipient shall include the audit, inspections, investigations, and record-keeping requirements of 

this Agreement in all such subcontracts and assignments.  Recipient shall also ensure any 

subrecipients of the Grant Funds, if any, are subject to the audit, inspections, investigations, 

reporting and record-keeping requirements provided herein and said requirements shall be 

included in any contract with any subrecipient. 

 

11.  Recipient shall comply with all American Rescue Plan Act requirements, including 

but not limited to, 2 Code of Federal Regulations 200 (Uniform Administrative Requirements, 

Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards), as applicable.  Recipient 

acknowledges the City must comply with the sub-recipient monitoring requirements of 2 CFR 

200.331 and agrees to provide such additional information and documentation to the City as 

required to comply with such requirements.  Recipient also acknowledges that payments of Grant 

Funds under this Agreement are subject to the following requirements in the Uniform Guidance 

(2 C.F.R. Part 200): 2 C.F.R. § 200.303 regarding internal controls, 2 C.F.R. §§ 200.330 through 

200.332 regarding sub-recipient monitoring and management, and subpart F regarding audit 

requirements. 

 

VII. NOTICE 

Board of Directors Meeting - BD2021-10-01 - ARPA Grant from City of Jacksonville

9



 

7 

 Any notice required to be given under this Agreement shall be by certified mail, return 

receipt requested, or by hand delivery with a written receipt. Notices shall be deemed effective 

upon receipt or three (3) days after posting of certified mail.  Notices shall be delivered to: 

 

 For the City: 

 

  City of Jacksonville 

  Finance and Administration 

  117 W. Duval Street, Suite 300 

  Jacksonville, Florida 32202 

  Attn: Chief Financial Officer 
 

 For Recipient: 
 

  Jacksonville Port Authority 

  2831 Talleyrand Avenue, Jacksonville, Florida 32206 

  Attn: CEO 

 

 

VIII.  CIVIL RIGHTS 

A. There will be no discrimination against any employee or person served on account of 

race, color, sex, age, religion, ancestry, national origin, handicap, marital status, citizenship 

status, creed, sexual orientation, gender identity, disability, veteran status, or any other protected 

status under federal, state, or City law, or under Recipient’s corporate policies in the 

performance of this Agreement or disbursement/distribution of the Grant Funds.  

B. Recipient shall comply with Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 (42 U.S.C. §2000d) 

in regard to the persons served. 

C. Recipient shall comply with Title VII of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 (42 U.S.C. §2000e) 

in regard to employees or applicants for employment. 

D. Recipient shall comply with Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973 in regard to 

employees or applicants for employment and clients served. 

E. Recipient shall comply with the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990 (Public Law 

101-336) in regard to employees and persons served. 

F. If City receives evidence of discrimination in violation of this Agreement, the City may 

terminate this Agreement and Recipient shall return the Grant Funds to the City immediately 

upon written demand therefore. 

IX.  NON-DISCRIMINATION 

Recipient shall not discriminate, directly or indirectly, on the grounds of race, color, sex 

(including pregnancy), sexual orientation, gender identity or expression, religion, sex, age or 

political affiliation, national origin, disability, age, marital status, veteran status, or any other 

Board of Directors Meeting - BD2021-10-01 - ARPA Grant from City of Jacksonville

10



 

8 

impermissible factor in recruitment, hiring, compensation, training, placement, promotion, 

discipline, demotion, transfers, layoff, recall, termination, working conditions, and related terms 

and conditions of employment. Recipient shall post in conspicuous places, available to 

employees and applicants for employment, notices as provided by the City setting forth the 

provisions of this nondiscrimination clause. Recipient shall incorporate this provision in all 

subcontracts for the services provided under this Agreement. 

X.  OTHER CONDITIONS 

 Recipient shall comply with all applicable federal, state, and local laws, rules, regulations, 

and ordinances, as amended from time to time.  Such laws, rules, regulations, and ordinances 

shall include, but are not limited to, Chapter 119, Florida Statutes, (the Florida Public Records 

Law) and Section 286.011, Florida Statutes, (the Florida Open Meetings Law).  Such laws, rules, 

regulations, and ordinances also include, but are not limited to, the applicable requirements for 

licenses and certifications necessary in connection with any activity arising out of expenditure of 

the Grant Funds.  If any of the obligations of this Agreement are to be performed by a 

subcontractor or subrecipient, the provisions of this Section shall be incorporated into and 

become a part of such subcontract or subrecipient contract. 

XI.  REPRESENTATIONS/WARRANTIES AND UNAUTHORIZED WORKERS 
 

A.  As a material inducement for City to enter into this Agreement, Recipient warrants (and 

unless otherwise specified, the warranties shall remain true during the term of this Agreement) 

that: 

1.  Recipient is a body politic and corporate validly existing under the laws of the State of 

Florida.  Recipient has authority to enter into this Agreement and all documents contemplated by 

this Agreement, and to perform its obligations arising under this Agreement and other documents 

contemplated by this Agreement. The individuals signing on behalf of Recipient have authority 

to do so. 

2.  Recipient’s execution of this Agreement and performance of its obligations under this 

Agreement have been duly authorized and approved by the shareholders, members, partners, or 

directors of Recipient (as the case may be). 

3.  This Agreement and all documents contemplated by this Agreement each constitute a 

legal, valid, and binding obligation of Recipient, enforceable in accordance with its terms.   

4.  This Agreement and all documents contemplated by this Agreement do not and will 

not contravene any provision of the governing documents of Recipient, any judgment, order, 

decree, writ, or injunction by which Recipient is bound, or any provision of any applicable law 

or regulation by which Recipient is bound.  The execution of this Agreement and all documents 

contemplated by this Agreement, and performance of the obligations of this Agreement and other 

contemplated documents, will not result in a breach of or constitute a default under any 

agreement to which Recipient is a party or require consent from any third party.    

Board of Directors Meeting - BD2021-10-01 - ARPA Grant from City of Jacksonville

11



 

9 

5.  Recipient holds all necessary licenses, permits, and authorizations required by 

applicable governmental bodies as a condition to conduct business in the State of Florida and in 

the City of Jacksonville.   

6.  Recipient has not employed or retained any third party having a relationship with City 

to solicit or secure this Agreement and has not paid or agreed or promised to pay any fee, 

commission, percentage, gift, or any other consideration contingent upon or resulting from the 

execution of this Agreement. 

7.  Recipient is not in default under any agreement with City, and Recipient has satisfied 

all conditions imposed by any governmental authority in connection with provision of the 

Services. 

8.  Recipient warrants and represents that the Grant Application submitted subsequent to 

the execution of this Agreement and any additional reports, audits, or information submitted to 

the City for the purposes of receipt of the Grant Funds or as may otherwise be required pursuant 

to this Agreement, the ARP Act, or the Appropriation Ordinance, is true, accurate and correct as 

to the information contained therein. 

B.  The employment by Recipient of unauthorized aliens is a violation of Section 

274A(e) of the Federal Immigration and Naturalization Act and a material breach of this 

Agreement, and City may unilaterally cancel this Agreement upon thirty (30) days’ prior written 

notice of such cancellation.  In accordance with Chapter 2020-149, Laws of Florida, Recipient 

confirms that it does not currently, and will not in the future, employ, contract with, or 

subcontract with unauthorized aliens and Recipient, including any of its subcontractors, has 

registered accordingly with the E-Verify platform.  Recipient acknowledges that any violation 

with the aforementioned will result in a default to this Agreement and the City shall be entitled to 

any and all relief available, including but not limited to, consequential damages, rebate of fees, 

costs and expenses, etc., resulting from the voiding of this Agreement.  

 

XII.   ENTIRE AGREEMENT; COUNTERPARTS 

 

 This Agreement contains the entire agreement between the parties with respect to the 

receipt and expenditure of the Grant Funds. Any amendment to this Agreement must be in 

writing and duly executed by the parties hereto. This Agreement may be signed in counterparts, 

including by electronic signature, the counterparts and signatures of which, when taken together, 

shall constitute but one Agreement. 

 

[Remainder of page intentionally left blank.  Signature pages follow.] 

Board of Directors Meeting - BD2021-10-01 - ARPA Grant from City of Jacksonville

12



 

10 

 IN WITNESS WHEREOF the parties hereto have duly executed this Agreement on the 

day and year first above written. 

 

         RECIPIENT 

 

         JACKSONVILLE PORT AUTHORITY 

 

 

         By:        

          

         Print Name:       

 

         Title:        

          

         Date:        

 

 

 

[City of Jacksonville signatures follow on next page.] 

  

Board of Directors Meeting - BD2021-10-01 - ARPA Grant from City of Jacksonville

13



 

11 

 

 

         CITY OF JACKSONVILLE, a consolidated 
         political subdivision and municipal corporation 

         existing under the laws of the State of Florida 

ATTEST: 

 

 

By:___________________________  By:  _________________________________ 

      James R. McCain, Jr.,            Lenny Curry, Mayor 

      Corporation Secretary 

 

 

Encumbrance and funding information for internal City use:     

   

Amount…………...........$4,000,000.00 

 

In accordance with Section 24.103(e), of the Ordinance Code of the City of Jacksonville, I do 

hereby certify that there is an unexpended, unencumbered and unimpounded balance in the 

appropriation sufficient to cover the foregoing Agreement; provided however, this certification is 

not, nor shall it be interpreted as, an encumbrance of funding under this Agreement.  Actual 

encumbrance(s) shall be made by subsequent purchase order(s) as specified in said Agreement. 

 

 

              

      Director of Finance 

      City Contract #      

      Purchase Order #     

          

 

FORM APPROVED: 

 

 

By: _______________________________ 

 Office of General Counsel  

 

 
GC-#1455021-v3-JAXPort_ARP_Contract_(2021-463).docx 

 

 

 

 

 

Board of Directors Meeting - BD2021-10-01 - ARPA Grant from City of Jacksonville

14



 

12 

Exhibit A 

 

Grant Application 

 

[To immediately follow this page.] 

Board of Directors Meeting - BD2021-10-01 - ARPA Grant from City of Jacksonville

15



REQUESTING ENTITY NAME: SSN/EIN:
DUNS:

EMAIL: WEBSITE:
PHONE: GRANT AMOUNT AWARDED:

SECTOR:
2019 TAX RETURN TOTAL INCOME: 2020 TAX RETURN TOTAL INCOME:

HOW DOES THE BUSINESS/ORGANIZATION SERVE THE LOCAL COMMUNITY?

DESCRIBE HOW FUNDS WILL BE USED: 

     __ YES
     __ NO

1
2

PLEASE REFERENCE THE INSTRUCTIONS BEFORE YOU PROCEED.

COUNCIL MEMBER:BUSINESS ADDRESS:
MAILING ADDRESS:

WHAT LOCATIONS/GEOGRAPHIC AREAS ARE SERVED BY YOUR ORGANIZATION?

DEMOGRAPHICS OF THOSE SERVED BY YOUR ORGANIZATION:

If yes, please list the program and amount received from any federal, state, and/or local stimulus programs 
for the COVID-19 pandemic and subsequent shutdowns. For example: PPP: $45,000; EIDL: $20,000

IF NON-PROFIT: DESCRIBE THE EVIDENCE-BASE FOR ANY INTERVENTIONS EMPLOYED BY YOUR 
ORGANIZATION:

DESCRIBE FINANCIAL HARDSHIP EXPERIENCED AS A RESULT OF COVID-19. NOTE ANY DOCUMENTED, 
QUANTIFIABLE HARDSHIPS, CLEARLY DRIVEN BY COVID-19.

HAS YOUR BUSINESS/ORGANIZATION PREVIOUSLY RECEIVED COVID 
RELIEF FUNDS FROM ANY FEDERAL, STATE, OR LOCAL STIMULUS 

NO. OF LOCATIONS: NO. OF EMPLOYEES:

DESCRIBE BUSINESS, PRODUCTS, AND/OR SERVICES:

LEGAL STATUS OF ORGANIZATION:

NAME OF INDIVIDUAL COMPLETING THIS APPLICATION: 

Board of Directors Meeting - BD2021-10-01 - ARPA Grant from City of Jacksonville

16



3
4
5

ADDITIONAL DOCUMENTS
     Please Attach the Following Documents to this Application: 

Articles of Incorporation 
Business License 
W-9
PHOTO ID OF PRINCIPAL

CERTIFICATION

      SIGNATURE:

      DATE:

I certify that the information provided herein is true to the best of my knowledge. I understand that a false 
statement may disqualify me from receipt of grant funding. I further certify that the information provided to 
the City of Jacksonville in this application and any supporting documentation submitted herewith is 
submitted under penalties of perjury under Section 837.06, Florida Statutes. 

I understand I am submitting this application for funding under the American Rescue Plan Act of 2021 on
behalf of my business/non-profit organization, located in Duval County, Florida, which provides direct
services to residents and/or businesses in the Jacksonville area. My business/non-profit is in good standing
with both the US Federal Government and the State of Florida and is not debarred or suspended. I certify
that all of the above information is true and correct and that any grant allocation my business/non-profit
organization may receive shall be expended in accordance with the ARP Act and related guidance from the
U.S. Department of Treasury, and all applicable federal, state and local laws, rules or regulations. I further
acknowledge that the expenditure of this funding is subject to review by the City of Jacksonville, the State of
Florida, and the U.S. Department of Treasury. I further understand and acknowledge that these funds may
be audited and any expenditures deemed inconsistent with the requirements of the ARP Act, Federal
Guidelines, and/or applicable laws, rules or regulations may result in the requirement that I return to the City 
of Jacksonville all grant funds allocated to my business/non-profit organization as required pursuant to the 
agreement between my business/organization and the City.

Wet or electronic signature and date are allowed.

Board of Directors Meeting - BD2021-10-01 - ARPA Grant from City of Jacksonville

17



BD2021-10-02

SUBMISSION
FOR

BOARD APPROVAL

BACKGROUND: JAXPORT originally entered into a Lease Agreement No. 160031802 
(“SSLL”) with the Board of Trustees of the Internal Improvement Trust Fund of the State of 
Florida (“State”) in 2001 to construct and operate a one-slip docking facility exclusively to be 
used for the mooring of one bulk material vessel.  The lease has subsequently been 
renewed every five (5) years for continued operation on the same terms and conditions as 
the original lease.

STATUS: There is no cost to JAXPORT for the lease renewal.  The State will finalize the 
renewal upon acceptance.

RECOMMENDATION: Recommendation is hereby made for the Board to approve the 
Lease renewal and that the Board authorize the Chief Executive Officer, or his designee, to 
execute all documents necessary for the Submerged Lands Lease as shown in the 
attachment.

ATTACHMENT: Map showing location of SSLL and Sovereignty Submerged Lands Lease 
Instrument with Sketch and Property Description

SUBJECT: SOVEREIGN SUBMERGED LAND LEASE RENEWAL
SSLL NO. 160031802

COST: $0.00 (Renewal Fee) BUDGETED: N/A

SOURCE OF FUNDS: N/A

Board of Directors Meeting - BD2021-10-02 - Sovereign Submerged Land Lease Renewal

1



BD2021-10-02

SUBMISSION
FOR

BOARD APPROVAL

RECOMMENDED FOR APPROVAL:

Frederick P. Wong Jr. ___________________________________
Chief Operating Officer Signature and Date

SUBMITTED FOR APPROVAL:

Eric Green
Chief Executive Officer ___________________________________

Signature and Date

BOARD APPROVAL:

10/25/2021 ______ ___________________________________
Meeting Date Rebecca Dicks/Recording Secretary

ATTEST:

_________________________ ___________________________________
Brad Talbert, Secretary Wendy Hamilton, Chair

Signature:

Email:

Signature:

Email:

Frederick P. Wong Jr. (Oct 19, 2021 13:41 EDT)
Frederick P. Wong Jr.
frederick.wong@jaxport.com

Eric B. Green (Oct 19, 2021 16:54 EDT)
Eric B. Green

eric.green@jaxport.com

Board of Directors Meeting - BD2021-10-02 - Sovereign Submerged Land Lease Renewal

2

https://jacksonvilleportauthority.na3.echosign.com/verifier?tx=CBJCHBCAABAAbT775k4_TOeSYPj11IsGHo2z05ygpisR
https://jacksonvilleportauthority.na3.echosign.com/verifier?tx=CBJCHBCAABAAbT775k4_TOeSYPj11IsGHo2z05ygpisR


Board of Directors Meeting - BD2021-10-02 - Sovereign Submerged Land Lease Renewal

3



 

[0229] 

 

This Instrument Prepared By: 

Tiana D. Brown 

Action No. 43993 

Bureau of Public Land Administration 

3900 Commonwealth Boulevard 

Mail Station No. 125 

Tallahassee, Florida 32399 

 

 BOARD OF TRUSTEES OF THE INTERNAL IMPROVEMENT TRUST FUND 

 OF THE STATE OF FLORIDA 

 _________________________________ 

 

 SOVEREIGNTY SUBMERGED LANDS FEE WAIVED LEASE RENEWAL 

 

BOT FILE NO. 160031802        

  

 

 THIS LEASE is hereby issued by the Board of Trustees of the Internal Improvement Trust Fund of the State of Florida, 

hereinafter referred to as the Lessor. 

 WITNESSETH:  That for and in consideration of payment of the annual lease fees hereinafter provided and the faithful  

 

and timely performance of and compliance with all terms and conditions stated herein, the Lessor does hereby lease to  

 

Jacksonville Port Authority, a body politic and corporate, hereinafter referred to as the Lessee, the sovereignty lands described  

 

as defined in 18-21.003, Florida Administrative Code, contained within the following legal description: 

 

 

   A parcel of sovereignty submerged land in  

   Section 42, Township 01 South, Range 27 East, in St. Johns River, 

   Duval County, Florida, containing 324,087 square feet, more or less, 

   as is more particularly described and shown on Attachment A, dated June 21, 2001. 

  

 TO HAVE THE USE OF the hereinabove described premises from August 28, 2021, the effective date of this lease 

renewal, through August 28, 2026, the expiration date of this lease renewal.  The terms and conditions on and for which this 

lease renewal is granted are as follows: 

 1.  USE OF PROPERTY:  The Lessee is hereby authorized to operate a 1-slip docking facility to be used  exclusively 

for the mooring of one bulk material vessel in conjunction with an upland bulk material handling facility, without fueling 

facilities, with a sewage pumpout facility if it meets the regulatory requirements of the State of Florida Department of 

Environmental Protection or State of Florida Department of Health, whichever agency has jurisdiction, and without liveaboards 

as defined in paragraph 27, as shown and conditioned in Attachment A, and the State of Florida Department of Environmental 

Protection Consolidated Environmental Resource Permit No. 16-185791-001-EI, dated October 22, 2001, incorporated herein 

and made a part of this lease by reference.  All of the foregoing subject to the remaining conditions of this lease. 

 

 

Board of Directors Meeting - BD2021-10-02 - Sovereign Submerged Land Lease Renewal

4



2. AGREEMENT TO EXTENT OF USE:  This lease is given to the Lessee to use or occupy the leased premises only

for those activities specified herein and as conditioned by the permit(s) referenced in paragraph 1 of this lease.  The Lessee shall 

not (i) change or add to the approved use of the leased premises as defined herein (e.g., from commercial to multi-family 

residential, from temporary mooring to rental of wet slips, from rental of wet slips to contractual agreement with third party for 

docking of cruise ships, from rental of recreational pleasure craft to rental or temporary mooring of charter/tour boats, from 

loading/offloading commercial to rental of wet slips, etc.); (ii) change activities in any manner that may have an environmental 

impact that was not considered in the original authorization or regulatory permit; or (iii) change the type of use of the riparian 

uplands  or as permitted by the Lessee’s interest in the riparian upland property that is more particularly described in Attachment 

B without first obtaining a regulatory permit/modified permit, if applicable, the Lessor’s written authorization in the form of a 

modified lease, the payment of additional fees, if applicable, and, if applicable, the removal of any structures which may no 

longer qualify for authorization under the modified lease.  If at any time during the lease term this lease no longer satisfies the 

requirements of subparagraph 18-21.011(1)(b)7., Florida Administrative Code, for a fee waived lease, the Lessee shall be 

required to pay an annual lease fee in accordance with Rule 18-21.011, Florida Administrative Code, and if applicable, remove 

any structures which may no longer qualify for authorization under this lease. 

3. SUBMITTING ANNUAL CERTIFIED FINANCIAL RECORDS:  Within 30 days after each anniversary of the

effective date of this lease, the Lessee shall submit annual certified financial records of income and expenses to the State of 

Florida Department of Environmental Protection, Division of State Lands, Bureau of Public Land Administration, 3900 

Commonwealth Blvd, MS 130, Tallahassee, FL  32399.  “Income” is defined in subsection 18-21.003(32), Florida 

Administrative Code.  The submitted financial records shall be certified by a certified public accountant. 

4. EXAMINATION OF LESSEE’S RECORDS:  For purposes of this lease, the Lessor is hereby specifically authorized

and empowered to examine, for the term of this lease including any extensions thereto plus three (3) additional years, at all 

reasonable hours, the books, records, contracts, and other documents confirming and pertaining to the computation of annual 

lease payments as specified in paragraph two (2) above. 

5. MAINTENANCE OF LESSEE’S RECORDS:  The Lessee shall maintain separate accounting records for:  (i) the

gross revenue derived directly from the use of the leased premises, (ii) the gross revenue derived indirectly from the use of the 

leased premises, and (iii) all other gross revenue derived from the Lessee's operations on the riparian upland property.  The 

Lessee shall secure, maintain and keep all records for the entire term of this lease plus three (3) additional years.  This period 

shall be extended for an additional two (2) years upon request for examination of all records and accounts for lease verification 

purposes by the Lessor. 

6. PROPERTY RIGHTS:  The Lessee shall make no claim of title or interest to said lands hereinbefore described by

reason of the occupancy or use thereof, and all title and interest to said land hereinbefore described is vested in the Lessor.  The 

Lessee is prohibited from including, or making any claim that purports to include, said lands described or the Lessee's leasehold 

interest in said lands into any form of private ownership, including but not limited to any form of condominium or cooperative 

ownership.  The Lessee is further prohibited from making any claim, including any advertisement, that said land, or the use 

thereof, may be purchased, sold, or re-sold. 

7.  INTEREST IN RIPARIAN UPLAND PROPERTY:  During the term of this lease, the Lessee shall maintain satisfactory

evidence of sufficient upland interest as required by paragraph 18-21.004(3)(b), Florida Administrative Code, in the riparian upland 

property that is more particularly described in Attachment B and by reference made a part hereof together with the riparian rights 

appurtenant thereto.  If such interest is terminated or the Lessor determines that such interest did not exist on the effective date of 

this lease, this lease may be terminated at the option of the Lessor.  If the Lessor terminates this lease, the Lessee agrees not to assert 

a claim or defense against the Lessor arising out of this lease.  Prior to sale and/or termination of the Lessee's interest in the riparian 

upland property, the Lessee shall inform any potential buyer or transferee of the Lessee's interest in the riparian upland property 

and the existence of this lease and all its terms and conditions and shall complete and execute any documents required by the 

Lessor to effect an assignment of this lease, if consented to by the Lessor.  Failure to do so will not relieve the Lessee from 

responsibility for full compliance with the terms and conditions of this lease which include, but are not limited to, payment of all 

fees and/or penalty assessments incurred prior to such act. 

Page 2 of 81 Pages
Sovereignty Submerged Lands Lease No. 160031802

Board of Directors Meeting - BD2021-10-02 - Sovereign Submerged Land Lease Renewal

5



8. ASSIGNMENT OF LEASE:  This lease shall not be assigned or otherwise transferred without prior written consent

of the Lessor or its duly authorized agent.  Such assignment or other transfer shall be subject to the terms, conditions and 

provisions of this lease, current management standards and applicable laws, rules and regulations in effect at that time.  Any 

assignment or other transfer without prior written consent of the Lessor shall be null and void and without legal effect. 

9. LIABILITY/INVESTIGATION OF ALL CLAIMS:  The Lessee shall investigate all claims of every nature at its

expense.  Each party is responsible for all personal injury and property damage attributable to the negligent acts or omissions of 

that party and the officers, employees and agents thereof.  Nothing herein shall be construed as an indemnity or a waiver of 

sovereign immunity enjoyed by any party hereto, as provided in Section 768.28, Florida Statutes, as amended from time to time, 

or any other law providing limitations on claims. 

10. NOTICES/COMPLIANCE/TERMINATION: The Lessee binds itself, its successors and assigns, to abide by the

provisions and conditions herein set forth, and said provisions and conditions shall be deemed covenants of the Lessee, its 

successors and assigns.  In the event the Lessee fails or refuses to comply with the provisions and conditions herein set forth, or 

in the event the Lessee violates any of the provisions and conditions herein set forth, and the Lessee fails or refuses to comply 

with any of said provisions or conditions within twenty (20) days of receipt of the Lessor’s notice to correct, this lease may be 

terminated by the Lessor upon thirty (30) days written notice to the Lessee.  If canceled, all of the above-described parcel of land 

shall revert to the Lessor.  All notices required to be given to the Lessee by this lease or applicable law or administrative rules 

shall be sufficient if sent by U.S. Mail to the following address: 

Jacksonville Port Authority 

2831 Talleyrand Avenue 

 Jacksonville, FL 32206 

The Lessee shall notify the Lessor by certified mail of any change to this address at least ten (10) days before the change is 

effective. 

11. TAXES AND ASSESSMENTS:  The Lessee shall assume all responsibility for liabilities that accrue to the subject

property or to the improvements thereon, including any and all drainage or special assessments or taxes of every kind and 

description which are now or may be hereafter lawfully assessed and levied against the subject property during the effective 

period of this lease. 

12. NUISANCES OR ILLEGAL OPERATIONS:  The Lessee shall not permit the leased premises or any part thereof

to be used or occupied for any purpose or business other than herein specified unless such proposed use and occupancy are 

consented to by the Lessor and the lease is modified accordingly, nor shall Lessee knowingly permit or suffer any nuisances or 

illegal operations of any kind on the leased premises. 

13. MAINTENANCE OF FACILITY/RIGHT TO INSPECT:  The Lessee shall maintain the leased premises in good

condition, keeping the structures and equipment located thereon in a good state of repair in the interests of public health, safety 

and welfare.  No dock or pier shall be constructed in any manner that would cause harm to wildlife.  The leased premises shall 

be subject to inspection by the Lessor or its designated agent at any reasonable time. 

14. NON-DISCRIMINATION:  The Lessee shall not discriminate against any individual because of that individual's

race, color, religion, sex, national origin, age, handicap, or marital status with respect to any activity occurring within the area 

subject to this lease or upon lands adjacent to and used as an adjunct of the leased area. 

15. ENFORCEMENT OF PROVISIONS:  No failure, or successive failures, on the part of the Lessor to enforce any

provision, nor any waiver or successive waivers on its part of any provision herein, shall operate as a discharge thereof or render 

the same inoperative or impair the right of the Lessor to enforce the same upon any renewal thereof or in the event of subsequent 

breach or breaches. 

Page 3 of 81 Pages
Sovereignty Submerged Lands Lease No. 160031802

Board of Directors Meeting - BD2021-10-02 - Sovereign Submerged Land Lease Renewal

6



16. PERMISSION GRANTED:  Upon expiration or cancellation of this lease all permission granted hereunder shall

cease and terminate. 

17. RENEWAL PROVISIONS:  Renewal of this lease shall be at the sole option of the Lessor.  Such renewal shall be

subject to the terms, conditions and provisions of management standards and applicable laws, rules and regulations in effect at 

that time.  In the event that the Lessee is in full compliance with the terms of this lease, the Lessor will begin the renewal process.  

The term of any renewal granted by the Lessor shall commence on the last day of the previous lease term.  In the event the Lessor 

does not grant a renewal, the Lessee shall vacate the leased premises and remove all structures and equipment occupying and 

erected thereon at its expense.  The obligation to remove all structures authorized herein upon termination of this lease shall constitute 

an affirmative covenant upon the Lessee’s interest in the riparian upland property more particularly described in Attachment B which 

shall run with the title to the Lessee’s interest in said riparian upland property and shall be binding upon the Lessee and the Lessee's 

successors in title or successors in interest. 

18. REMOVAL OF STRUCTURES/ADMINISTRATIVE FINES:  If the Lessee does not remove said structures and

equipment occupying and erected upon the leased premises after expiration or cancellation of this lease, such structures and 

equipment will be deemed forfeited to the Lessor, and the Lessor may authorize removal and may sell such forfeited structures 

and equipment after ten (10) days written notice by certified mail addressed to the Lessee at the address specified in Paragraph 12 

or at such address on record as provided to the Lessor by the Lessee.  However, such remedy shall be in addition to all other 

remedies available to the Lessor under applicable laws, rules and regulations including the right to compel removal of all structures 

and the right to impose administrative fines. 

19. REMOVAL COSTS/LIEN ON RIPARIAN UPLAND PROPERTY:   Subject to the noticing provisions of Paragraph

20 of this lease, any costs incurred by the Lessor in removal of any structures and equipment constructed or maintained on state 

lands shall be paid by Lessee and any unpaid costs and expenses shall constitute a lien upon the Lessee’s interest in the riparian 

upland property that is more particularly described in Attachment B.  This lien on the Lessee’s interest in the riparian upland 

property shall be enforceable in summary proceedings as provided by law. 

20. RIPARIAN RIGHTS/FINAL ADJUDICATION:  In the event that any part of any structure authorized hereunder is

determined by a final adjudication issued by a court of competent jurisdiction to encroach on or interfere with adjacent riparian 

rights, Lessee agrees to either obtain written consent for the offending structure from the affected riparian owner or to remove the 

interference or encroachment within 60 days from the date of the adjudication.  Failure to comply with this paragraph shall 

constitute a material breach of this lease agreement and shall be grounds for immediate termination of this lease agreement at the 

option of the Lessor. 

21.  AMENDMENTS/MODIFICATIONS:  This lease is the entire and only agreement between the parties.  Its provisions

are not severable.  Any amendment or modification to this lease must be in writing, must be accepted, acknowledged and executed 

by the Lessee and Lessor, and must comply with the rules and statutes in existence at the time of the execution of the modification 

or amendment.   Notwithstanding the provisions of this paragraph, if mooring is authorized by this lease, the Lessee may install 

boatlifts within the leased premises without formal modification of the lease provided that (a) the Lessee obtains any state or local 

regulatory permit that may be required; and (b) the location or size of the lift does not increase the mooring capacity of the docking 

facility. 

22. ADVERTISEMENT/SIGNS/NON-WATER DEPENDENT ACTIVITIES/ADDITIONAL ACTIVITIES/MINOR

STRUCTURAL REPAIRS:  No permanent or temporary signs directed to the boating public advertising the sale of alcoholic 

beverages shall be erected or placed within the leased premises.  No restaurant or dining activities are to occur within the leased 

premises.  The Lessee shall ensure that no permanent, temporary or floating structures, fences, docks, pilings or any structures 

whose use is not water-dependent shall be erected or conducted over sovereignty submerged lands without prior written consent 

from the Lessor.  No additional structures and/or activities including dredging, relocation/realignment or major repairs or 

renovations to authorized structures, shall be erected or conducted on or over sovereignty, submerged lands without prior written 

consent from the Lessor.  Unless specifically authorized in writing by the Lessor, such activities or structures shall be considered 

unauthorized and a violation of Chapter 253, Florida Statutes, and shall subject the Lessee to administrative fines under Chapter 

18-14, Florida Administrative Code.  This condition does not apply to minor structural repairs required to maintain the authorized

structures in a good state of repair in the interests of public health, safety or welfare; provided, however, that such activities shall

not exceed the activities authorized by this lease.

Page 4 of 81 Pages
Sovereignty Submerged Lands Lease No. 160031802

Board of Directors Meeting - BD2021-10-02 - Sovereign Submerged Land Lease Renewal

7



23. USACE AUTHORIZATION:  Prior to commencement of construction and/or activities authorized herein, the Lessee 
shall obtain the U.S. Army Corps of Engineers (USACE) permit if it is required by the USACE.  Any modifications to the 

construction and/or activities authorized herein that may be required by the USACE shall require consideration by and the prior 

written approval of the Lessor prior to the commencement of construction and/or any activities on sovereign, submerged lands. 

24. COMPLIANCE WITH FLORIDA LAWS:  On or in conjunction with the use of the leased premises, the Lessee 
shall at all times comply with all Florida Statutes and all administrative rules promulgated thereunder.  Any unlawful activity 

which occurs on the leased premises or in conjunction with the use of the leased premises shall be grounds for the termination of 

this lease by the Lessor. 

25. LIVEABOARDS:  The term "liveaboard" is defined as a vessel docked at the facility and inhabited by a person or 
persons for any five (5) consecutive days or a total of ten (10) days within a thirty (30) day period.  If liveaboards are authorized 

by paragraph one (1) of this lease, in no event shall such "liveaboard" status exceed six (6) months within any twelve (12) month 

period, nor shall any such vessel constitute a legal or primary residence. 

26. GAMBLING VESSELS:  During the term of this lease and any renewals, extensions, modifications or assignments 
thereof, Lessee shall prohibit the operation of or entry onto the leased premises of gambling cruise ships, or vessels that are used 

principally for the purpose of gambling, when these vessels are engaged in “cruises to nowhere,” where the ships leave and 

return to the state of Florida without an intervening stop within another state or foreign country or waters within the 

jurisdiction of another state or foreign country, and any watercraft used to carry passengers to and from such gambling cruise 

ships. 

[Remainder of page intentionally left blank; Signature page follows] 

Page 5 of 81 Pages
Sovereignty Submerged Lands Lease No. 160031802

Board of Directors Meeting - BD2021-10-02 - Sovereign Submerged Land Lease Renewal

8



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Lessor and the Lessee have executed this instrument on the day and year first above written.

WITNESSES: BOARD OF TRUSTEES OF THE INTERNAL 

IMPROVEMENT TRUST FUND OF THE STATE 

OF FLORIDA 

Original Signature  (SEAL) 

       BY: 

Print/Type Name of Witness Brad Richardson, Chief, Bureau of Public Land Administration, 

Division of State Lands, State of Florida Department of 

Environmental Protection, as agent for and on behalf of the Board 

____________________________________________               of Trustees of the Internal Improvement Trust Fund of the 

Original Signature State of Florida. 

Print/Type Name of Witness 

"LESSOR"

STATE OF FLORIDA 

COUNTY OF LEON 

The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me by means of physical presence this  day of 

, 20       , by Brad Richardson, Chief, Bureau of Public Land Administration, Division of State Lands, 

State of Florida Department of Environmental Protection, as agent for and on behalf of the Board of Trustees of the Internal 

Improvement Trust Fund of the State of Florida.  He is personally known to me. 

APPROVED SUBJECT TO PROPER EXECUTION: 

Notary Public, State of Florida 

DEP Attorney Date 

Printed, Typed or Stamped Name 

My Commission Expires: 

Commission/Serial No. 

Page 6 of 81 Pages
Sovereignty Submerged Lands Lease No. 160031802

9/27/2021

Board of Directors Meeting - BD2021-10-02 - Sovereign Submerged Land Lease Renewal

9



WITNESSES: Jacksonville Port Authority, 

a body politic and corporate    (SEAL) 

         BY: 

Original Signature Original Signature of Executing Authority 

Eric Green 

Typed/Printed Name of Witness Typed/Printed Name of Executing Authority 

Chief Executive Officer 

Original Signature Title of Executing Authority 

Typed/Printed Name of Witness “LESSEE”

STATE OF 

COUNTY OF 

The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me by means of __ physical presence or __online notarization this 

 day of                                            , 20         , by Eric Green as Chief Executive Officer, for and on behalf of Jacksonville 

Port Authority, a body politic and corporate.  He is personally known to me or who has produced    , 

as identification. 

My Commission Expires: 

Signature of Notary Public 

Notary Public, State of 

Commission/Serial No. Printed, Typed or Stamped Name 

Page 7 of 81 Pages
Sovereignty Submerged Lands Lease No. 160031802

Board of Directors Meeting - BD2021-10-02 - Sovereign Submerged Land Lease Renewal

10



Attachment A
Page 8 of 81 Pages
SSLL No. 160031802

Board of Directors Meeting - BD2021-10-02 - Sovereign Submerged Land Lease Renewal

11



Attachment A
Page 9 of 81 Pages
SSLL No. 160031802

Board of Directors Meeting - BD2021-10-02 - Sovereign Submerged Land Lease Renewal

12



Attachment A
Page 10 of 81 Pages
SSLL No. 160031802

Board of Directors Meeting - BD2021-10-02 - Sovereign Submerged Land Lease Renewal

13



Attachment A
Page 11 of 81 Pages
SSLL No. 160031802

Board of Directors Meeting - BD2021-10-02 - Sovereign Submerged Land Lease Renewal

14



Attachment B
Page 12 of 81 Pages
SSLL No. 160031802

Board of Directors Meeting - BD2021-10-02 - Sovereign Submerged Land Lease Renewal

15



Attachment B
Page 13 of 81 Pages
SSLL No. 160031802

Board of Directors Meeting - BD2021-10-02 - Sovereign Submerged Land Lease Renewal

16



Attachment B
Page 14 of 81 Pages
SSLL No. 160031802

Board of Directors Meeting - BD2021-10-02 - Sovereign Submerged Land Lease Renewal

17



Attachment B
Page 15 of 81 Pages
SSLL No. 160031802

Board of Directors Meeting - BD2021-10-02 - Sovereign Submerged Land Lease Renewal

18



Attachment B
Page 16 of 81 Pages
SSLL No. 160031802

Board of Directors Meeting - BD2021-10-02 - Sovereign Submerged Land Lease Renewal

19



Attachment B
Page 17 of 81 Pages
SSLL No. 160031802

Board of Directors Meeting - BD2021-10-02 - Sovereign Submerged Land Lease Renewal

20



Attachment B
Page 18 of 81 Pages
SSLL No. 160031802

Board of Directors Meeting - BD2021-10-02 - Sovereign Submerged Land Lease Renewal

21



Attachment B
Page 19 of 81 Pages
SSLL No. 160031802

Board of Directors Meeting - BD2021-10-02 - Sovereign Submerged Land Lease Renewal

22



Attachment B
Page 20 of 81 Pages
SSLL No. 160031802

Board of Directors Meeting - BD2021-10-02 - Sovereign Submerged Land Lease Renewal

23



Attachment B
Page 21 of 81 Pages
SSLL No. 160031802

Board of Directors Meeting - BD2021-10-02 - Sovereign Submerged Land Lease Renewal

24



Attachment B
Page 22 of 81 Pages
SSLL No. 160031802

Board of Directors Meeting - BD2021-10-02 - Sovereign Submerged Land Lease Renewal

25



Attachment B
Page 23 of 81 Pages
SSLL No. 160031802

Board of Directors Meeting - BD2021-10-02 - Sovereign Submerged Land Lease Renewal

26



Attachment B
Page 24 of 81 Pages
SSLL No. 160031802

Board of Directors Meeting - BD2021-10-02 - Sovereign Submerged Land Lease Renewal

27



Attachment B
Page 25 of 81 Pages
SSLL No. 160031802

Board of Directors Meeting - BD2021-10-02 - Sovereign Submerged Land Lease Renewal

28



Attachment B
Page 26 of 81 Pages
SSLL No. 160031802

Board of Directors Meeting - BD2021-10-02 - Sovereign Submerged Land Lease Renewal

29



Attachment B
Page 27 of 81 Pages
SSLL No. 160031802

Board of Directors Meeting - BD2021-10-02 - Sovereign Submerged Land Lease Renewal

30



Attachment B
Page 28 of 81 Pages
SSLL No. 160031802

Board of Directors Meeting - BD2021-10-02 - Sovereign Submerged Land Lease Renewal

31



Attachment B
Page 29 of 81 Pages
SSLL No. 160031802

Board of Directors Meeting - BD2021-10-02 - Sovereign Submerged Land Lease Renewal

32



Attachment B
Page 30 of 81 Pages
SSLL No. 160031802

Board of Directors Meeting - BD2021-10-02 - Sovereign Submerged Land Lease Renewal

33



Attachment B
Page 31 of 81 Pages
SSLL No. 160031802

Board of Directors Meeting - BD2021-10-02 - Sovereign Submerged Land Lease Renewal

34



Attachment B
Page 32 of 81 Pages
SSLL No. 160031802

Board of Directors Meeting - BD2021-10-02 - Sovereign Submerged Land Lease Renewal

35



Attachment B
Page 33 of 81 Pages
SSLL No. 160031802

Board of Directors Meeting - BD2021-10-02 - Sovereign Submerged Land Lease Renewal

36



Attachment B
Page 34 of 81 Pages
SSLL No. 160031802

Board of Directors Meeting - BD2021-10-02 - Sovereign Submerged Land Lease Renewal

37



Attachment B
Page 35 of 81 Pages
SSLL No. 160031802

Board of Directors Meeting - BD2021-10-02 - Sovereign Submerged Land Lease Renewal

38



Attachment B
Page 36 of 81 Pages
SSLL No. 160031802

Board of Directors Meeting - BD2021-10-02 - Sovereign Submerged Land Lease Renewal

39



Attachment B
Page 37 of 81 Pages
SSLL No. 160031802

Board of Directors Meeting - BD2021-10-02 - Sovereign Submerged Land Lease Renewal

40



Attachment B
Page 38 of 81 Pages
SSLL No. 160031802

Board of Directors Meeting - BD2021-10-02 - Sovereign Submerged Land Lease Renewal

41



Attachment B
Page 39 of 81 Pages
SSLL No. 160031802

Board of Directors Meeting - BD2021-10-02 - Sovereign Submerged Land Lease Renewal

42



Attachment B
Page 40 of 81 Pages
SSLL No. 160031802

Board of Directors Meeting - BD2021-10-02 - Sovereign Submerged Land Lease Renewal

43



Attachment B
Page 41 of 81 Pages
SSLL No. 160031802

Board of Directors Meeting - BD2021-10-02 - Sovereign Submerged Land Lease Renewal

44



Attachment B
Page 42 of 81 Pages
SSLL No. 160031802

Board of Directors Meeting - BD2021-10-02 - Sovereign Submerged Land Lease Renewal

45



Attachment B
Page 43 of 81 Pages
SSLL No. 160031802

Board of Directors Meeting - BD2021-10-02 - Sovereign Submerged Land Lease Renewal

46



Attachment B
Page 44 of 81 Pages
SSLL No. 160031802

Board of Directors Meeting - BD2021-10-02 - Sovereign Submerged Land Lease Renewal

47



Attachment B
Page 45 of 81 Pages
SSLL No. 160031802

Board of Directors Meeting - BD2021-10-02 - Sovereign Submerged Land Lease Renewal

48



Attachment B
Page 46 of 81 Pages
SSLL No. 160031802

Board of Directors Meeting - BD2021-10-02 - Sovereign Submerged Land Lease Renewal

49



Attachment B
Page 47 of 81 Pages
SSLL No. 160031802

Board of Directors Meeting - BD2021-10-02 - Sovereign Submerged Land Lease Renewal

50



Attachment B
Page 48 of 81 Pages
SSLL No. 160031802

Board of Directors Meeting - BD2021-10-02 - Sovereign Submerged Land Lease Renewal

51



Attachment B
Page 49 of 81 Pages
SSLL No. 160031802

Board of Directors Meeting - BD2021-10-02 - Sovereign Submerged Land Lease Renewal

52



Attachment B
Page 50 of 81 Pages
SSLL No. 160031802

Board of Directors Meeting - BD2021-10-02 - Sovereign Submerged Land Lease Renewal

53



Attachment B
Page 51 of 81 Pages
SSLL No. 160031802

Board of Directors Meeting - BD2021-10-02 - Sovereign Submerged Land Lease Renewal

54



Attachment B
Page 52 of 81 Pages
SSLL No. 160031802

Board of Directors Meeting - BD2021-10-02 - Sovereign Submerged Land Lease Renewal

55



Attachment B
Page 53 of 81 Pages
SSLL No. 160031802

Board of Directors Meeting - BD2021-10-02 - Sovereign Submerged Land Lease Renewal

56



Attachment B
Page 54 of 81 Pages
SSLL No. 160031802

Board of Directors Meeting - BD2021-10-02 - Sovereign Submerged Land Lease Renewal

57



Attachment B
Page 55 of 81 Pages
SSLL No. 160031802

Board of Directors Meeting - BD2021-10-02 - Sovereign Submerged Land Lease Renewal

58



Attachment B
Page 56 of 81 Pages
SSLL No. 160031802

Board of Directors Meeting - BD2021-10-02 - Sovereign Submerged Land Lease Renewal

59



Attachment B
Page 57 of 81 Pages
SSLL No. 160031802

Board of Directors Meeting - BD2021-10-02 - Sovereign Submerged Land Lease Renewal

60



Attachment B
Page 58 of 81 Pages
SSLL No. 160031802

Board of Directors Meeting - BD2021-10-02 - Sovereign Submerged Land Lease Renewal

61



Attachment B
Page 59 of 81 Pages
SSLL No. 160031802

Board of Directors Meeting - BD2021-10-02 - Sovereign Submerged Land Lease Renewal

62



Attachment B
Page 60 of 81 Pages
SSLL No. 160031802

Board of Directors Meeting - BD2021-10-02 - Sovereign Submerged Land Lease Renewal

63



Attachment B
Page 61 of 81 Pages
SSLL No. 160031802

Board of Directors Meeting - BD2021-10-02 - Sovereign Submerged Land Lease Renewal

64



Attachment B
Page 62 of 81 Pages
SSLL No. 160031802

Board of Directors Meeting - BD2021-10-02 - Sovereign Submerged Land Lease Renewal

65



Attachment B
Page 63 of 81 Pages
SSLL No. 160031802

Board of Directors Meeting - BD2021-10-02 - Sovereign Submerged Land Lease Renewal

66



Attachment B
Page 64 of 81 Pages
SSLL No. 160031802

Board of Directors Meeting - BD2021-10-02 - Sovereign Submerged Land Lease Renewal

67



Attachment B
Page 65 of 81 Pages
SSLL No. 160031802

Board of Directors Meeting - BD2021-10-02 - Sovereign Submerged Land Lease Renewal

68



Attachment B
Page 66 of 81 Pages
SSLL No. 160031802

Board of Directors Meeting - BD2021-10-02 - Sovereign Submerged Land Lease Renewal

69



Attachment B
Page 67 of 81 Pages
SSLL No. 160031802

Board of Directors Meeting - BD2021-10-02 - Sovereign Submerged Land Lease Renewal

70



Attachment B
Page 68 of 81 Pages
SSLL No. 160031802

Board of Directors Meeting - BD2021-10-02 - Sovereign Submerged Land Lease Renewal

71



Attachment B
Page 69 of 81 Pages
SSLL No. 160031802

Board of Directors Meeting - BD2021-10-02 - Sovereign Submerged Land Lease Renewal

72



Attachment B
Page 70 of 81 Pages
SSLL No. 160031802

Board of Directors Meeting - BD2021-10-02 - Sovereign Submerged Land Lease Renewal

73



Attachment B
Page 71 of 81 Pages
SSLL No. 160031802

Board of Directors Meeting - BD2021-10-02 - Sovereign Submerged Land Lease Renewal

74



Attachment B
Page 72 of 81 Pages
SSLL No. 160031802

Board of Directors Meeting - BD2021-10-02 - Sovereign Submerged Land Lease Renewal

75



Attachment B
Page 73 of 81 Pages
SSLL No. 160031802

Board of Directors Meeting - BD2021-10-02 - Sovereign Submerged Land Lease Renewal

76



Attachment B
Page 74 of 81 Pages
SSLL No. 160031802

Board of Directors Meeting - BD2021-10-02 - Sovereign Submerged Land Lease Renewal

77



Attachment B
Page 75 of 81 Pages
SSLL No. 160031802

Board of Directors Meeting - BD2021-10-02 - Sovereign Submerged Land Lease Renewal

78



Attachment B
Page 76 of 81 Pages
SSLL No. 160031802

Board of Directors Meeting - BD2021-10-02 - Sovereign Submerged Land Lease Renewal

79



Attachment B
Page 77 of 81 Pages
SSLL No. 160031802

Board of Directors Meeting - BD2021-10-02 - Sovereign Submerged Land Lease Renewal

80



Attachment B
Page 78 of 81 Pages
SSLL No. 160031802

Board of Directors Meeting - BD2021-10-02 - Sovereign Submerged Land Lease Renewal

81



Attachment B
Page 79 of 81 Pages
SSLL No. 160031802

Board of Directors Meeting - BD2021-10-02 - Sovereign Submerged Land Lease Renewal

82



Attachment B
Page 80 of 81 Pages
SSLL No. 160031802

Board of Directors Meeting - BD2021-10-02 - Sovereign Submerged Land Lease Renewal

83



Attachment B
Page 81 of 81 Pages
SSLL No. 160031802

Board of Directors Meeting - BD2021-10-02 - Sovereign Submerged Land Lease Renewal

84



1 $1,813,479 $828,000 $2,641,479
Last CO    

#02          
02/22/21

C-1436C Manson 
Construction 

BIMT Wharf Rehabilitation  Phase II $51,021,172 $358,623 $51,379,795 $0

Last CO      
#07      

08/102021

2 $340,055 $58,967 $399,022

Last CO     
#04  11/27/20

C-1737 Brance Diversified 
Inc.

Upland DMMA Construction Phase 1 - Buck 
Island

$3,987,200 $1,136,500 $5,123,700 $0

Last CO      
#04  

C-1737A Brance Diversified 
Inc.

Remove Dredge Materials DMMA Cell "B" 
Buck Island

$5,950,000 $5,950,000 $0

$116,032 $0 $116,032

3 $262,600 $3,500 $266,100
Last CO      

#01   03/05/21

$606,570  $606,570
 

6 $2,276,305 $0 $2,276,305
4 $2,276,305 $46,402 $2,322,707
 Last CO    

#03    
05/27/21

5 $141,569 $71,200 $212,769
 Last CO    

#01MC-1611 Underwater 
Mechanix, Inc

Facilities Wide Underwater Pile Cleaning 
Berth 5

$867,800 $486,200 $1,354,000 $486,200

Option Yr 2
C-1611 Underwater 

Mechanix, Inc
TMT Pile Jacket Repair - Berth 4 $630,299 $258,520 $888,819 $146,753

CO #2     
07/15/21

AE-1780 Engineering Inspection & Design Services 
Pile Jacket Repairs Berth 5

$143,950 $0 $143,950

6 $854,134 $85,668 $939,802 $0
Last CO      

#04  08/25/21

AE-1436D Rehabilitate Wharfs 33 & 34 HDR Eng., Inc. Engineering Services During Construction 
BIMT Wharf Reconstruction Phase II

$2,193,605

KEY CAPITAL PROJECTS

No. Contract 
Number Project Description Vendor Scope Original Contract 

Amt. ($)

 Approved 
Change 

Orders To 
Date 

Total Contract as 
Amended Payments to Date

$447,874 $0 HDR awarded contract for Services During Construction.  HDR is performing on-site 
daily observation including reports.  Their services are critical in answering RFI's to keep 
the contractor working expeditiously.  Change Order #4 increased contract to provide 
funding for contract completion.

$44,594,513 $6,785,283 Manson Construction Co was awarded the construction contract to build Phase 2A and 
2B on BIMT wharf.  Construction NTP was issued on December 3, 2018.  Contract 
completion date is February 6, 2021.  Contractor is behind schedule but making every 
effort to improve the schedule.   Phase 2B Construction:  Manson has completed driving 
all concrete pile.  They have completed the demolition of existing waterside beam and 
piles.  They are forming and pouring the bents to support the precast panels and have 
installed precast panels.  They are prepping for their first concrete deck pour. 

Work Remaining 
To Invoice

Proposed 
Change Orders 

(PCO's)
Remarks

$46,786 $0 HDR completed the design documents and will be performing administrative services 
during construction which includes reviewing submittals,RFI's, change order requests, 
and monthly inspections.  

$4,976,700 $147,000 Brance Diversified received a Notice to Proceed on November 24, 2020.  Contract 
duration is 450 calendar days.  Change Order #1 added moving an additional 50,000 CY 
of sand from Toe Dike construction area to Cell A.  Brance Diversified has completed the 
construction of the toe dike and has placed 98% of material in new holding cell.  Change 
Order #3 will authorize an additional 61,000 CY  of material placed in the new holding 
cell.

AE-1658 Upland Dredge Material 
Management Design & 
Construction 

HDR Engineering Engineering Design & Services During 
Construction for Toe Dike at Buck Island

$352,236

$0 $5,950,000 NTP issued September 21st 2021.

AE-1737A C&ES Engineering & Inspection Services for Buck 
Island DMMA

$42,006 $74,026 $0 C & ES is performing on-site inspection services as needed to confirm that testing and 
construction procedures are in accordance with plans and specificatons.

AE-1728 Westrock Property 
Improvements

Tetra Tech, Inc Westrock Property Concept & Design $57,408 $208,693 $0 Tetra Tech, Inc has completed the survey of the property.  Change Order 1 authorized a 
wetland survey that confirmed no wetlands on the property.  Tetra Tech submitted a 
design concept.  Concept has been amended and Tetra Tech is working on 30% design.

C-1728 Realco Recycling 
Co., Inc.

TMT Westrock Buildings Demolition $57,408 $549,163 $0

AE-1611A Pile Cap & Beam Rehab - 
TMT

HDR Engineering, 
Inc.

Design Services for Pile Jacket Program $162,276

Realco Wrecking was issued a Notice To Proceed on June 2, 2021.  Contract duration is 
180 days.  Realco Wrecking has knocked down 50% of building and will begin to salvage 
material and haul off concrete.  Project is progressing well.

C-1671 August Drive Sheet Pile 
Wall Replacement

Poseidon Dredge 
& Marine, Inc.

August Drive Sheet Pile Wall Replacement $2,116,958 $205,749 $0 Poseidon Dredge & Marine, Inc has been awarded the contract to replace the sheetpile 
walls at the August Drive Bridge.  Change Order #3 added additional demolition of 
concrete wing walls.  The sheet pile has been installed on both sides of the bridge.  
PD&M is working on tie-backs, cathodic protection and the approach slabs.  They are 
ahead of schedule.

$50,493 $0 HDR Engineering provided design services and is providing Services During 
Construction for the pile jacket repair project at Berth 4 at TMT. 

$259,521 $1,094,479

$776,198 $112,621 Underwater Mechnix, Inc. was awarded the contract to provide pile jacket repairs at TMT 
Berth 4.  CO #1 added an additional 66 LF of pile jackets required after demo was 
completed.  Materials have been received and UMX is proceeding with the installation of 
the jackets.  

$54,540 Taylor Engineering has completed surveys and geotechnical investigation.  
Recommendations have been made to investigate 2 options.   Construct a toe wall and 
off-load existing material into toe wall and determine optimum height to raise existing 
walls to create more capacity.  Taylor Engineering is working on 90% drawings and 
submitted the FDEP permit application.

JACOBS 
Engineering 
Group

$24,386 $119,564 JACOBS was directed to design the pile jacket repairs on Berth 5 on May 25, 2021.   
They will start inspection and design of repairs after Underwater Mechanix cleans the 
pile.

AE-1742 Bartram Island Cell C 
Expansion 
Design/Permitting

Taylor 
Engineering, Inc.

Bartram Island DMMA Cell C Concept 
Development Design & Permitting

$885,261

Board of Directors Meeting - R2021-10-01  Engineering and Construction Update

1



Financial Highlights

September 2021

Our stable performance continued through the final month of our fiscal year. We report Operating
Revenues of $5.056 million, slightly behind plan due to continued weakness in auto activity and lack of 
any cruise sailings. 

Operating Expenses are under plan for the month by $477 thousand. This was largely attributable to light 
berth maintenance dredging which was under budget by $390 thousand as the planned Talleyrand dredge 
shifted into October.

For the month, we reported $2.135 million in Income Before Depreciation, resulting in a $658 thousand 
favorable variance to plan.

Year-To-Date

Our 2021 results are impressive considering the circumstances of the Pandemic. Total Operating 
Revenues are $65.227 million, nearly $6 million ahead of plan and $106 thousand over prior year. 
Container revenue is the highlight of the year at $34.565 million, surpassing prior year by $1.7 million. In 
2021, JAXPORT set a record of handling 1.407 million TEU’s. All but one container terminal operator 
exceeded budget; some by double digits. Asian trade totaled 26% of total container activity,
notwithstanding the fact that we experienced several blank sailings during the summer months.

Auto Revenue at $15.251 million was slightly over budget by 2% and 1% below prior year. We reported 
616 thousand units, up 13% from prior year, the result of Southeast Toyota processing over 27 thousand 
units more than prior year.

Bulk cargoes contributed to our favorable revenue variance as did Other Revenue which is comprised of 
Escort fees and Tipping fees. These tipping fees will not be repeated in 2022 as we are reserving capacity 
at our DMMA sites for our own dredge spoils.

We amended the SSA contract in July creating a $10 million in Non-Operating Expense, but still report Net 
Income Before Depreciation of $15.798 million, $5.335 million ahead of plan.

BALANCE SHEET

We finish the year with a healthy, stable Balance Sheet. Cash is hovering just below $17 million, 
Receivables increased during the month to $7.110 million, higher than normal due to approximately $1.8 
million billed for dredging/spoil site deposits at month end. Core receivables of $5.365 million are turning 
normally.

We reduced bonds payable by $8 million during the year, in line with required amortization and we 
reduced our Short-Term Loan with the City by $12.7 million with payments received from FDOT for Harbor 
Deepening.

Board of Directors Meeting - R2021-10-02  Financial Highlights by Beth McCague

1



Looking Ahead to 2022

2021 was a challenging year. Even without Cruise Revenue we exceeded budget. We attracted a new 
service in mid-summer, renegotiated the SSA contract to produce additional revenue going forward, and 
completed our 5-year Strategic Plan. 

As we start the 2022 fiscal year, we are well positioned to leverage our most significant port improvement-
completion of the harbor deepening project scheduled mid-2022- to produce increasing  revenue and job 
growth.

Board of Directors Meeting - R2021-10-02  Financial Highlights by Beth McCague

2



 

Actual Budget Prior Budget   Prior Actual Budget Prior Budget   Prior

Vessel Calls 124 124 122 0% 2% 1,521 1,484 1,505 2% 1%

Total Tons 767,549 796,421 921,573 -4% -17% 10,338,474 9,557,051 9,916,155 8% 4%

Total Revenue $5,055,962 $5,060,260 $5,221,060 0% -3% $65,227,388 $59,295,007 $65,120,988 10% 0%

Actual Budget Prior Budget   Prior Actual Budget Prior Budget   Prior

Container Revenue $2,690,354 $2,588,688 $2,836,630 4% -5% $34,564,584 $31,064,366 $32,842,846 11% 5%

Container TEU's 107,474     105,423   118,811        2% -10% 1,407,310       1,265,074     1,277,161     11% 10%

ICTF Rail Lifts 1,878         1,500       1,212            25% 55% 17,994            18,000          13,642           0% 32%

Auto Revenue $1,204,739 $1,248,779 $1,262,775 -4% -5% $15,251,247 $14,985,447 $15,366,560 2% -1%

Auto Units 40,650       49,063     50,030          -17% -19% 616,215          588,755        547,480        5% 13%

Military Revenue $108,941 $105,826 $207,673 3% -48% $1,352,806 $1,270,000 $1,396,490 7% -3%

Military Units 446            356          1,666            25% -73% 6,997              4,273            8,396             64% -17%

Breakbulk Revenue $358,713 $341,102 $365,487 5% -2% $4,880,043 $4,093,136 $4,008,773 19% 22%

Breakbulk Tons 67,443       65,484     84,819          3% -20% 730,115          785,813        792,010        -7% -8%

Liquid Bulk Revenue $173,759 $109,376 $139,371 59% 25% $1,558,679 $1,312,622 $1,570,450 19% -1%

Liquid Bulk Tons 50,647       24,125     42,740          110% 19% 457,621          289,495        425,795        58% 7%

Dry Bulk Revenue $130,146 $168,239 $176,099 -23% -26% $2,043,236 $2,018,956 $1,998,023 1% 2%

Dry Bulk Tons 18,041       66,819     93,963          -73% -81% 781,896          801,824        789,341        -2% -1%

Cruise Revenue $0 $285,710 $0 -100% 0% $0 $2,000,000 $1,896,597 -100% -100%

Cruise Passengers -                 11,429     -               -100% 0% -                  80,000          74,865           -100% -100%

Total Cargo Revenue $4,666,650 $4,847,719 $4,988,035 -4% -6% $59,650,594 $56,744,526 $59,079,739 5% 1%

Other Revenue $389,312 $212,540 $233,025 83% 67% $5,576,794 $2,550,480 $6,041,249 119% -8%

 

VITAL STATISTICS 
SEPTEMBER FY2021 - Cargo Performance

CARGO  INDICATORS

VARIANCE YEAR-TO- DATE VARIANCE

OPERATING  REVENUE / STATISTICS

VARIANCE YEAR-TO- DATE VARIANCE

Board of Directors Meeting - R2021-10-03  Financials/Vital Statistics

1



12

9/30/2021 Current Current Prior Year Current Current Prior Year

Month Month Budget Month YTD YTD Budget YTD

Actual Budget Variance Actual Actual Budget Variance Actual

OPERATING REVENUES

     CONTAINERS 2,690,354   2,588,688   101,666    2,836,630   34,564,584   31,064,366   3,500,218     32,842,846   

     AUTOS 1,204,739   1,248,779   (44,040)     1,262,775   15,251,247   14,985,447   265,800        15,366,560   

     MILITARY 108,941      105,826      3,115        207,673      1,352,805     1,270,000     82,805          1,396,489     

     BREAK BULK 358,713      341,102      17,611      365,487      4,880,043     4,093,136     786,907        4,008,773     

     LIQUID BULK 173,759      109,376      64,383      139,371      1,558,678     1,312,622     246,056        1,570,451     

     DRY BULK 130,146      168,239      (38,093)     176,099      2,043,236     2,018,956     24,280          1,998,023     

     CRUISE -              285,710      (285,710)   -              -                2,000,000     (2,000,000)    1,896,597     

     OTHER OPERATING REVENUE 389,312      212,540      176,772    233,025      5,576,794     2,550,480     3,026,314     6,041,249     

 TOTAL OPERATING REVENUES 5,055,962   5,060,260   (4,298)       5,221,060   65,227,388   59,295,007   5,932,381     65,120,988   

OPERATING EXPENSES

     SALARIES & BENEFITS 1,422,726   1,479,699   (56,973)     1,453,632   17,464,842   17,585,522   (120,680)       16,973,469   

     SERVICES & SUPPLIES 337,542      340,857      (3,315)       249,544      3,820,946     4,090,702     (269,756)       3,952,227     

     SECURITY SERVICES 324,708      417,443      (92,735)     366,598      4,365,308     5,009,338     (644,030)       5,039,378     

     BUSINESS TRAVEL AND TRAINING 17,480        36,914        (19,434)     (2,895)         142,582        443,111        (300,529)       271,374        

     PROMO,ADV,DUES & MEMBERSHIPS 60,861        52,648        8,213        56,007        537,843        631,897        (94,054)         579,126        
     UTILITY SERVICES 35,351        66,996        (31,645)     148,220      669,388        803,875        (134,487)       849,665        
     REPAIRS & MAINTENANCE 262,443      150,978      111,465    228,419      1,945,019     1,812,165     132,854        1,955,805     
     CRANE MAINTENANCE PASS THRU (33,361)       (37,500)       4,139        (37,141)       (463,430)       (450,000)       (13,430)         (390,607)       
     BERTH MAINTENANCE DREDGING 67,662        458,306      (390,644)   521,822      3,985,836     5,499,738     (1,513,902)    5,394,027     

     MISCELLANEOUS 13,028        19,506        (6,478)       11,695        155,773        234,457        (78,684)         162,595        

 TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSES 2,508,441   2,985,847   (477,406)   2,995,901   32,624,108   35,660,805   (3,036,697)    34,787,060   

OPERATING INC BEFORE DS AND DEPR 2,547,522   2,074,413   473,109    2,225,159   32,603,280   23,634,202   8,969,078     30,333,929   
 

NON OPERATING INCOME

     INVESTMENT INCOME 695             12,210        (11,515)     5,300          9,559             146,344        (136,785)       229,869        

     SHARED REVENUE FROM CITY 824,177      799,031      25,146      91,617        9,847,144     9,588,317     258,827        1,846,541     

 TOTAL NON OPERATING ITEMS 824,872      811,241      13,631      96,917        9,856,703     9,734,661     122,042        2,076,410     

NON OPERATING EXPENSE
     DEBT SERVICE 1,237,565   1,408,117   (170,552)   1,160,886   15,946,243   22,897,400   (6,951,157)    20,300,932   

     SSA CONTRACT AMENDMENT -              -              -            10,000,000   -                10,000,000   -                

     CONTRIBUTIONS TO TENANTS -              -              -            -              -                -                -                900,539        

     CRANE RELOCATION -              -              -            -              706,429        -                706,429        191                

     OTHER NON OP EXPENSE (30)              682             (712)          (30)              8,904             8,140             764                9,205             

 TOTAL NON OPERATING EXPENSE 1,237,535   1,408,799   (171,264)   1,160,856   26,661,576   22,905,540   3,756,036     21,210,868   

INCOME BEFORE DEPRECIATION 2,134,859   1,476,855   658,004    1,161,221   15,798,407   10,463,323   5,335,084     11,199,471   

Jacksonville Port Authority

Comparative Income Statement (Unaudited)

For the 12 months ending 09/30/2021

Board of Directors Meeting - R2021-10-03  Financials/Vital Statistics

2



Jacksonville Port Authority

Balance Sheet (in thousands)

At September 30, 2021

September 30, 2021 August 31, 2021 September 30, 2020

Current Assets

Cash & cash equivalents 16,947                        17,216                        16,788                         
Restricted cash & cash equivalents 8,149                          6,938                          7,867                          
Accounts receivable, net 7,110                          6,202                          6,056                          

Notes and other receivables 388                             498                             1,138                          
Grants receivable 24,471                        26,651                        21,216                         

Inventories and other assets 2,011                          2,021                          1,667                          

Total Current Assets 59,076                        59,526                        54,732                         

Noncurrent Assets

Restricted cash & cash equivalents 15,973                        15,974                        16,087                         

Restricted Cash for Cap Projects 345                             1,072                          3,457                          

Deferred outflow of resources 10,919                        10,949                        11,284                         
Capital Assets, net 850,833                      848,658                      849,045                       
Total Noncurrent Assets 878,070                      876,653                      879,873                       

Total Assets 937,146                      936,179                      934,605                       

   

Current liabilities    

Accounts payable 665                             1,366                          1,755                          

Construction accounts payable 2,812                          2,688                          3,293                          
Accrued expenses 1,067                          863                             895                             
Accrued interest payable 2,928                          2,286                          3,365                          

Retainage payable 803                             803                             803                             

Unearned Revenue 7,401                          7,401                          7,401                          

Bonds and Notes Payable 7,163                          7,163                          7,163                          

Total Current Liabilities 22,839                        22,570                        24,675                         

Noncurrent liabilities

Unearned Revenue 117,810                      118,310                      129,022                       

Accrued Expenses 3,276                          3,395                          3,406                          

Line of credit 15,479                        15,479                        19,346                         

Bonds and notes payable 214,800                      214,816                      222,152                       

Short Term Borrowings - COJ 25,000                        27,800                        37,700                         

Other Obligations 8,537                          8,537                          8,537                          

Net Pension Liability 18,069                        18,069                        18,069                         

Deferred inflow of resources 1,461                          1,461                          1,461                          

Total Non Current Liabilities 404,432                      407,867                      439,693                       

Total Liabilities 427,271                      430,437                      464,368                       

 

Net Position 509,875                      505,742                      470,237                       

Board of Directors Meeting - R2021-10-03  Financials/Vital Statistics

3



Com merc ial
REPORT

JAXPORT BOARD MEETING
October 2021

Board of Directors Meeting - R2021-10-04  Commercial Highlights

1



recent HIGHLIGHTS
• Strong cargo FY: led by container record

• New Container Vessel Service:

• Congested Service shift (HL; to begin in November)

• Charter Vessel (OWE; November)

• Permanent new service (MSC; began in April)

• Vehicle volumes strong FY recovery; supply chain?

Commercial Overview

Board of Directors Meeting - R2021-10-04  Commercial Highlights

2



new BUSINESS
NEW BUSINESS CARGO TYPE NOTES

Hapag Lloyd (AL3) Container vessel service Port Rotation: 
Antwerp, Belgium
Hamburg, Germany
London, UK
CHS, US
Jacksonville, US (November 2021)
Norfolk, US

Charter Vessel Container vessel service Charter vessel from Asia (November 2021)

Amazon Container New import volumes for area facilities

Project Mound Breakbulk Paperboard from Eastern Europe

Board of Directors Meeting - R2021-10-04  Commercial Highlights

3



Com merc ial
REPORT

JAXPORT BOARD MEETING
October 2021

Board of Directors Meeting - R2021-10-04  Commercial Highlights

4


	Agenda
	Approval of Minutes - Board of Directors Meeting - September 27, 2021
	BD2021-10-01 - ARPA Grant from City of Jacksonville
	BD2021-10-02 - Sovereign Submerged Land Lease Renewal
	R2021-10-01  Engineering and Construction Update
	R2021-10-02  Financial Highlights by Beth McCague
	R2021-10-03  Financials/Vital Statistics
	R2021-10-04  Commercial Highlights

		2021-10-19T13:55:03-0700
	Agreement certified by Adobe Sign


	REQUESTING ENTITY NAME: JACKSONVILLE PORT AUTHORITY
	SSNEIN: 59-3730270
	LEGAL STATUS OF ORGANIZATION: Independent Agency of the City of Jacksonville
	DUNS: 0619009570000
	BUSINESS ADDRESS: 2831 Talleyrand Avenue Jacksonville FL 32206
	MAILING ADDRESS: 2831 Talleyrand Avenue Jacksonville FL 32206
	EMAIL: beth.mccague@jaxport.com
	WEBSITE: jaxport.com
	PHONE: 904 357 3061
	GRANT AMOUNT AWARDED: $4,000,000.00
	NAME OF INDIVIDUAL COMPLETING THIS APPLICATION: Beth McCague
	NO OF LOCATIONS: 3
	NO OF EMPLOYEES: 157
	DESCRIBE BUSINESS PRODUCTS ANDOR SERVICESRow1: The Jacksonville Port Authority is a landlord port with three public marine facilities, an intermodal facility and one passenger cruise terminal. The Authority generates revenues primarily through user fees and charges to its tenants, and customers. The Authority's three terminals have a diverse mix of cargo including containers, automobiles, bulk and cruise operations. Approximately two-thirds of revenues are generated by containers and autos. The remaining lines of businesses include breakbulk, drybulk, liquid cargo and cruise. The Authority develops, manages and markets the publicly owned facilities to promote the growth of maritime and related industries with a mission of creating jobs and opportunity by offering the most competitive environment for the movement of cargo and people.
	HOW DOES THE BUSINESSORGANIZATION SERVE THE LOCAL COMMUNITYRow1: The Authority's mission is to create jobs and opportunity by offering the most competitive environment for the movement of cargo and people.
	WHAT LOCATIONSGEOGRAPHIC AREAS ARE SERVED BY YOUR ORGANIZATIONRow1: The Authority serves Jacksonville, the State of Florida and the southeast.
	DEMOGRAPHICS OF THOSE SERVED BY YOUR ORGANIZATIONRow1: Cargo handled at the Authority reaches over 100 million consumers and businesses throughout the southeast.
	IF NONPROFIT DESCRIBE THE EVIDENCEBASE FOR ANY INTERVENTIONS EMPLOYED BY YOUR ORGANIZATIONRow1: 
	DESCRIBE FINANCIAL HARDSHIP EXPERIENCED AS A RESULT OF COVID19 NOTE ANY DOCUMENTED QUANTIFIABLE HARDSHIPS CLEARLY DRIVEN BY COVID19Row1: The Authority has documented over $21 million in lost revenue as a result of the pandemic. Cruise revenue, historically $5 million annually, reduced to zero effective mid-March 2020 and future sailings not expected to return until at least March 2022.  The revenue loss from this source is $10 million. The Authority is the second largest auto processing port in the nation. The pandemic created global supply chain problems which dramatically impacted the auto industry. Loss of revenue from this source exceeds $3.5 million. The largest source of revenue is generated from Container operations. Losses from this segment of revenue are estimated at $8.5 million.
	DESCRIBE HOW FUNDS WILL BE USEDRow1: Funds will be used to offset the negative impact of the pandemic by reimbursing the Authority for salaries and benefits paid to keep staff employed during the pandemic so that port terminals could remain open and cargo could be processed.
	Dropdown - COUNCILPERSON: [Reggie Gaffney]
	1: The Florida Legislature legislated certain ARPA funds received by the State to be directed to Florida Ports. Disbusement amounts were determined by the Florida Department of Transportation.  The FDOT  granted $13,718,1244 to the Authority based on Lost Revenue calculation  as defined by the U.S. Department of the Treasury. Under the provisions of this grant, the Authority may only claim reimbursement for eligible expenses incurred  after March 3, 2021.
	2: 
	2019 Income: NA
	2020 Income: NA
	Check Box 1: Yes
	Check Box 2: Off
	Dropdown18: [Government]
	3: 
	4: 
	5: 
	Date15_af_date: 


